
AGENDA

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING
Date: Tuesday, 21 July 2015
Time: 7.00 pm
Venue: Council Chamber - Swale House

Membership:

Councillors Mike Baldock, Andy Booth (Chairman), Lloyd Bowen (Vice-Chairman), 
Derek Conway, Mike Dendor, Mick Galvin, Mike Henderson, Ken Ingleton, Samuel Koffie-
Williams, Peter Marchington, Prescott, Ben Stokes and Roger Truelove

Quorum = 4 

Pages
1. Apologies for Absence and Confirmation of Substitutes

2. Minutes

To approve the Minutes of the Meeting held on 24 June 2015 (Minute 
Nos. 83 - 87) as a correct record.

3. Declarations of Interest

Councillors should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or 
other material benefits for themselves or their spouse, civil partner or 
person with whom they are living with as a spouse or civil partner.  They 
must declare and resolve any interests and relationships.

The Chairman will ask Members if they have any interests to declare in 
respect of items on this agenda, under the following headings:

(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 
2011.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be 
declared.  After declaring a DPI, the Member must leave the meeting and 
not take part in the discussion or vote.  This applies even if there is 
provision for public speaking.

(b) Disclosable Non Pecuniary (DNPI) under the Code of Conduct 
adopted by the Council in May 2012.  The nature as well as the existence 
of any such interest must be declared.  After declaring a DNPI interest, 
the Member may stay, speak and vote on the matter.

Advice to Members:  If any Councillor has any doubt about the 
existence or nature of any DPI or DNPI which he/she may have in any 
item on this agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Director of 
Corporate Services as Monitoring Officer, the Head of Legal or from other 
Solicitors in Legal Services as early as possible, and in advance of the 
Meeting.

Public Document Pack



Part One - Substantive Items

4. Financial Outturn Report 2014/15

The Committee is asked to consider the Financial Outturn Report for 
2014/15 (attached).

The Cabinet Member for Finance and Head of Finance have been invited 
to attend.

1 - 36

5. Performance Monitoring Report 2014/15 - Quarter 4

The Committee is asked to consider the Performance Monitoring Report 
for 2014/15 Quarter 4 (attached).

The Cabinet Member for Performance and Policy and Performance 
Manager have been invited to attend.

37 - 56

Part Two - Business Items

6. Scrutiny Committee Work Programme for 2015/16

The Committee is asked to consider the Work Programme for the 
2015/16 Municipal Year (attached).

57 - 62

7. Reviews at Follow-up Stage and Log of Recommendations

The Committee is asked to review the updated log of recommendations 
(attached).

63 - 64

8. Other Review Progress Reports

The Committee is asked to consider updates on other reviews.

9. Cabinet Forward Plan

The Committee is asked to consider the Forward Plan with a view to 
identifying possible items for pre-decision scrutiny.

65 - 74

Issued on Friday, 10 July 2015

The reports included in Part I of this agenda can be made available in alternative formats. 
For further information about this service, or to arrange for special facilities to be provided at 
the meeting, please contact DEMOCRATIC SERVICES on 01795 417330. To find out 
more about the work of the Scrutiny Committee, please visit www.swale.gov.uk

Director of Corporate Services, Swale Borough Council,
Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT



Scrutiny Committee
Meeting Date 21 July 2015
Report Title Financial Outturn Report 2014/15
Cabinet Member Cllr Duncan Dewar-Whalley, Cabinet Member 

for Finance 
SMT Lead Nick Vickers, Head of Finance
Head of Service Nick Vickers, Head of Finance
Lead Officer Phil Wilson, Chief Accountant
Key Decision Yes
Classification Open
Forward Plan Reference number:
Recommendations 1. To note the revenue underspend on services of 

£1,973,400, a £277,490 rollover of specific and other 
grants, and a rollover of £259,500 due to an 
accounting adjustment re play areas, leaving a net 
underspend of £1,436,410.

2. To approve the revenue rollover of specific and other 
grants of £277,490 and £259,500 as set out in Table 
3 and Table 4 Appendix I.

3. To note the net revenue underspend on business 
rates of £190,230.

4. To consider the further revenue service rollovers from 
2014/15 and the setting up of new reserves, as set 
out in Table 4 Appendix I for approval.

5. To delegate to the Head of Finance the allocation of 
uncommitted underspends to reserve funds.

6. To consider the revenue service bids of £402,100 as 
set out in Table 5 Appendix I.

7. To consider the capital rollovers of £319,550 as 
detailed in Table 10 Appendix I for approval.

8. To approve the amendments to the Council’s 
2015/16 capital programme as detailed in paragraph 
3.18.

9. To approve an amendment to the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy 2015/16 as detailed in 
paragraph 3.31.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



1. Purpose of Report and Executive Summary

1.1 This report sets out the outturn position for 2014/15.  It shows that once again 
the Council has been able to achieve a significant underspend in the year. This 
is primarily due to the higher savings on the waste contract (now taken as base 
budget saving from 2015/16) and higher planning fee income – these two 
areas account for 63% of the £1,436,410. With a well-known flightpath of 
reduced funding into the medium term, the Council has once again pre-empted 
future funding reductions by restricting expenditure in year.

1.2 The Council’s commitment to increasing the business base of the Borough is 
reflected in significant business rates growth, and the principle of budgeting a 
year in arrears for increases in business rates is clearly the fiscally correct way 
of managing this hugely important but volatile and uncertain income stream.

1.3 The outturn position needs to be seen in the context of the Council’s medium 
term financial position as set out in the February Council budget report. The 
Council currently has a funding gap of £786,000 in 2016/17 and £1,115,000 in 
2017/18. The scope of management efficiency savings and for savings on 
major contracts is also much reduced. Balancing the budget therefore 
becomes much more about generating income, business rates and New 
Homes Bonus in-particular. There will be an emergency national budget on 8 
July and any implications of that for the Council will be reported verbally at the 
Cabinet meeting on 15 July.

1.4 The headline figures are:

 total revenue underspend of £1,973,400;

 £277,490 rollover of specific and other grants;

 £259,500 rollover due to an accounting adjustment;

 £694,560 bid requests from heads of service;

 £180,670 rollover of operational underspends;

 net over recovery on business rates of £190,140; and

 capital underspend of £248,690.

1.5 The detailed outturn statements are detailed in Tables 1 and 2 in Appendix I.

2. Background

2.1 The Council operates a monthly budget monitoring process at Head of Service 
level, with reports each month to the Strategic Management Team.

2.2 Financial monitoring reports have been presented to Cabinet on a quarterly 
basis, as well as to Scrutiny Committee.

Page 2



3. Proposal

Revenue Outturn

3.1 Table 1 in Appendix I shows the outturn position by service, with most services 
showing an underspend.  The line-by-line variations are explained in Table 2 
in Appendix I.

3.2 Within the total underspend are specific and other grants totalling £277,490.  
The principal grants are:

 Troubled Families Grant - £43k;

 Individual Electoral Registration Grant - £41k;

 Staying Put Health Grants - £40k.

3.3 The main areas of underspend are as follows (items over £50,000 not 
attributable to grants):

 Development Control - £429,000 - mainly attributable to additional 
planning fees;

 Grounds Maintenance Contract - £77,000 - mainly open spaces savings;

 Parking & Highways - £136,000 - mainly attributable to additional parking 
income;

 Recycling & Waste Minimisation - £117,000 - mainly additional income 
from garden waste scheme;

 Refuse Collection / Street Cleansing - £471,000 - net contract and 
contract variation savings; and

 Property - £120,000 – this arises from a variety of issues including an 
underspend on staff and additional property income.

3.4 Of the net underspend of £1,436,400, two thirds is attributable to two areas – 
savings on the waste contract and additional planning fees.

3.5 The main overspends are as follows:

 Sittingbourne Town Centre Redevelopment - £60,000 - where project 
management costs do not have a budget;

 Development Services - £67,000 - mainly additional staffing costs to 
meet high workloads;

 Planning Mid Kent Planning Service - £87,000 - mainly additional cost of 
implementing the service, including redundancy costs; and

 Leisure and Sports Centres - £73,000 - mainly as a result of a £50,000 
contribution towards the Executive Office of Swale Community Leisure 
Ltd. This is now in the 2015/16 base budget.

3.6 The last reported underspend to Cabinet in March 2015 was an underspend of 
£867,600.  The main reasons for the movement to the outturn position since 
then are:

Page 3



 Grant Thornton (the Council’s external auditors) recommended changing 
the disclosure of Play Area commuted sums, with the result that 
£259,500 can be moved from deferred receipts to a new earmarked 
reserve.  We have had to comply with this, but it is simply an accounting 
adjustment;

 additional contract savings on refuse collection/street cleansing  - 
£69,000;

 additional net parking income  - £100,000;

 grounds maintenance contract additional savings - £50,000;

 additional property rental income and other savings - £68,000; and

 additional Development Control fees - £215,000;

3.7 The report by the Council’s auditors, Grant Thornton for 2014/15 stated that:
“The Council continues to have an effective framework of financial control.  
There are well-established processes for preparing and monitoring annual 
budgets with detailed analysis of variances.  Both revenue and capital budgets 
were underspent in 2013/14.  The Council is also currently forecasting a 
revenue underspend for 2014/15.  There are effective systems of control to 
ensure accounting systems produce reliable information.”

Proposed Revenue Rollovers

3.8 Cabinet will determine revenue rollovers at its meeting on 15 July.  The use of 
rollovers is critical for the overall financial management of the Council.  Their 
proposed use falls into three main categories:

 unspent ring-fenced grants where projects continue and the funds can 
only be spent for these purposes and other grants (Table 3 Appendix I);

 service requests for rollovers at an operational level (Table 4 Appendix I); 
and

 larger bids linked to the Council’s priorities and the topping-up of specific 
reserve funds which it was not possible to do in the budget process, and 
timing issues where small amounts of rollover are requested at an 
operational level (Table 5 Appendix I).

3.9 Decisions on rollover of underspends also need to take into account possible 
in-year reductions in grant funding which the Government may announce on 8 
July.

Page 4



Business Rates

3.10 In total the Council collected £46m of business rates in 2014/15, and after the 
complicated system of levies and tariffs has been accounted for, the Council 
received £4.9m.

3.11 Council has previously agreed to the establishment of a Business Rates 
Volatility Reserve in order to assist the Council in managing the volatility in 
business rate income resulting from the introduction of business rate 
localisation from 2013/14.  There are a number of causes of this volatility, such 
as new businesses opening, existing business growing or closing, rating 
appeals, and collection rates.

3.12 The reserve has increased in 2014/15 due to the Cabinet approved rollover 
from 2013/14 (£450k), the originally budgeted increase (£321k), underspend 
on business rate relief (£147k), a higher level of business rates than budgeted 
(£190k), and work to increase the collectible rates (£48k), so that at the end of 
year the balance is £1.1m.

Improvement and Regeneration Funds 

3.13 Table 1 below details the outturn position on a number of reserve funds. 

Table 1: Improvement and Regeneration Funds

Balance as 
at 1 April 

2014

Transfers 
from 

reserve in 
year

Transfers 
to reserve 

in year

Balance as 
at March 

2015

Balance 
Unallocated 

as at 31 
March 2015

Funds: £ £ £ £ £
Performance 905,270 (158,359) 0 746,911 519,208
Regeneration 356,119 (298,698) 254,000 311,421 97,647
Localism 46,893 (27,180) 28,850 48,563 22,627
Transformation 252,418 (111,285) 52,205 193,338 193,338
Local Loan Fund 250,000 (50,000) 50,000 250,000 250,000

TOTAL 1,810,700 (645,522) 385,055 1,550,233 1,082,820

3.14 As in previous years, the Regeneration Fund was topped up by £250,000 in 
2014/15.

3.15 Table 6 of Appendix I details the appropriations from the above funds during 
2014/15.

Usable Reserves

3.16 Table 2 below summarises the usable reserves balance as at 31 March 2015.

Page 5



Table 2: Usable Reserves

Balance 
as at 1 

April 2014

Transfers 
from 

reserve in 
year

Transfers 
to reserve 

in year

Balance as 
at March 

2015
Reserve £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Total Ring Fenced Revenue 
Reserves 7,564 (1,569) 2,544 8,539

General Fund 4,618 0 506 5,124
Capital Grants Unapplied 243 (90) 116 269
Usable Capital Receipts Reserve 1,331 (528) 108 911

TOTAL 13,756 (2,187) 3,274 14,843

3.17 Table 7 of Appendix I details the ring-fenced reserves as at 31 March 2015 
after the transfers of specific grants.

Capital Expenditure

3.18 This report details the actual capital expenditure and highlights any variations 
between the revised 2014/15 capital budget and outturn.

3.19 Actual expenditure to end of March 2015 is £2,218,990.  This represents 
89.9% of the revised budget.  There is an underspend of £247,700.  Further 
details are set out in Table 9 of Appendix I.

3.20 Heads of Service have submitted a number of capital rollover requests 
totalling £319,550 to be spent in 2015/16to be released from the underspend 
of 2014/15.  The requests are listed in Table 9 Appendix I, with an explanation 
provided by the service manager.  Of these requests £221,870 is linked with 
partnership funding as explained in the notes.  The largest items of rollover 
are:

 Disabled Facilities Grant - £92,060 - committed to improvement but not 
yet spent; and

 Iwade play area £92,200 - land in the process of being transferred.

Funding of the 2014/15 Capital Programme

3.21 The 2014/15 capital programme expenditure of £2,218,990 is to be funded as 
set out in Table 3.

Page 6



Table 3: Capital Programme Funding
2014/15 
Revised 
Budget

2014/15 
Outturn

£ £
Partnership funding (including S106 Grants) 1,316,240 1,207,050
Earmarked Reserves 524,780 398,270
Long Term Debtors / Third Party Loans 168,000 230,990
Capital Receipts 450,250 360,180
Revenue underspends 8,420 22,500

Total Funded 2,467,690 2,218,990

3.22 Funding payable to the Council by Spirit of Sittingbourne under the 
development agreement will be used for a partial refurbishment of 34 High 
Street which has been purchased by the Opportunities Fund jointly set up by 
the Council and Spirit of Sittingbourne.

3.23 Capital receipts from sale of assets in 2014/15 were nil. Capital receipts from 
repayment of grants were £108,000.

3.24 A request is being made to use capital receipts to fund the two projects 
outlined below in 2015/16:

 £11k towards rebuilding the viewing platform at Milton Creek; and

 £25k to fund the additional cost of implementing the new Customer 
Service Centre Telephony system.  This is because dialogue during the 
tendering exercise identified additional requirements which will rationalise 
fully the systems in use by all three partners, and provide a base for the 
joint working on channel shift.

3.25 There are a number of revenue rollover bids from the 2014/15 underspend 
that potentially will be used to fund capital expenditure in 2015/16.

 refurbishment of Stonebridge Allotments footbridge - £15k;

 refurbishment of causeway at Queenborough - £60k;

 refurbishment of Vincent Gardens and Kemsley Rec play areas - £20k;

 remedial work at New Road - £10k;

 Eastchurch Road assistance - £30k;

 regeneration project management - £60k; and

 flood defence project - £30k.

Payment of Creditors

3.26 The outturn for 2014/15 against the target for payment of creditors is shown in 
Table 4 below.

Page 7



Table 4: Invoice payment
Target

2014/15 Final

Invoices paid in 30 days 97.00% 97.01%

Debtors

3.27 Tables 5, 6 and 7 analyse the debt outstanding.

3.28 The debt over six years old relates to charges on property, i.e. where the debt 
cannot be collected until the property concerned is sold.  It should be noted 
that the number of debts raised is increasing as we are now required to 
formally raise debts for all of our grants receivable from Kent County Council, 
NHS etc.

3.29 As can be clearly seen, on the measure of collectable debt less than two 
months old, the position has improved substantially.

Table 5: Debt outstanding by due date (not including Rent Deposit Scheme)

March 2015 March 2014
£’000 £’000

0-2 Months 726 325
2-6 Months 170 75
6-12 Months 12 188
1-2 Years 13 25
2-3 Years 9 14
3-4 Years 9 24
4-5 Years 24 11
5-6 Years 10 5
6 Years + 15 27
Total 988 694
Total over two months 262 369
% Total over two months 27% 53%

Page 8



Table 6: Debt outstanding by due date (including Rent Deposit Scheme)

March 2015 March 2014
£’000 £’000

0-2 Months 727 284
2-6 Months 180 81
6-12 Months 11 217
1-2 Years 19 32
2-3 Years 13 23
3-4 Years 16 71
4-5 Years 62 236
5-6 Years 173 5
6 Years + 16 27
Total 1,217 976
Total over two months 490 692
% Total over two months 40% 71%

Table 7: Debt outstanding (including Rent Deposit Scheme) by Head of Service
March 2015 March 2014

£’000 £’000
Rent Deposit Scheme 229 282
Commissioning & Customer Contact 233 250
Property 184 126
Housing 100 46
Legal (MKLS) 264 43
Economy & Communities 26 27
Planning 53 63
Regeneration 49 94
Communications 4 11
Environmental Health 27 0
Finance 0 14
Policy 3 0
Other 45 20
Total 1,217 976
Total over two months 490 692
% Total over two months 40% 71%

Treasury Management

3.30 At the Cabinet meeting on 4 February 2015, Members approved a change to 
the budget framework to allow for funding to be provided up to a maximum 
borrowing of £6m (minute 465/02/2015).

3.31 This will also require an amendment to the Council’s Treasury Management 
Strategy 2015/16 for its Authorised and Operational boundaries (borrowing 
limits) in order to be consistent with the above approved change. Therefore, 
Members are requested to approve an increase in the Authorised Limits and 
Operational Boundaries of the new limits as shown in Appendix I, Table 11. 
This will also need to be approved by Council.

Page 9



4. Alternative Options

4.1 None Identified – this report fulfils a statutory requirement to report the 
Council’s outturn.

5. Consultation Undertaken or Proposed

5.1 Heads of Service and Strategic Management Team have been consulted in 
preparing this report.

6. Implications

Issue Implications
Corporate Plan Good financial management is key to achieving our 

Corporate Plan priority of being “A council to be proud of”

Financial, Resource 
and Property

As detailed in the report

Legal and Statutory None identified at this stage

Crime and Disorder None identified at this stage

Sustainability None identified at this stage

Health & Wellbeing None identified at this stage

Risk Management and 
Health and Safety

None identified at this stage

Equality and Diversity None identified at this stage

7. Appendices

7.1 The following documents are published with this report and form part of the 
report:
Appendix I: Financial Outturn 2014/15

8. Background Papers

8.1 The Budget 2014/15 and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2014/15 to 2016/17

Page 10



Page 11



�

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
� � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � �� � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 


Page 12



�

� � � � � � � � � � � �  ! � � � � " # � � $ % & � ' ( ) * + , ( - . / . 0 ( ) 1 2 ) 3 + / 04 5 6 0 ( 7 8 5 7 7 5 ) /9 : ; < = ; > ? . ) + . / , (@ @ @A B C D E F G D H I J C K D L M N O P O Q R Q S T U U Q Q V S V Q T W Q X S V T X YZ [ \ C H ] ^ M A \ C E E [ P _ Q U ` S T U U a R T S R V X W ` T S a a T YF H [ b [ c ] d A [ c c I b C J C D e F M f C g g C b e Q S a U R S ` Q U a S h Q h S h T U W a T R S ` R U YA [ c c I b C H O J C [ b e i M j [ O \ Q R a S X Q U Q U Q S V U a W ` V S R a h Yk D e C _ D b J i D P K C H D e L M A B P C e J [ I a S ` R U S h T U a S ` U R S ` X ` W ` R S R X l YZ \ O b b C b g m M n P D D c O b h Q l S h U U T U X S h V a W Q Q Q S h a h YA [ c c C e e C [ b C b g d A I e J [ c D P A [ b J O H J ^ M j B [ c O e l S U a U S a a U R S a Q h S V a h W V V U S Q h a Y^ C P D H J [ P [ E A [ P o [ P O J D i D P K C H D e d ^ C P D H J [ P[ E k D g D b D P O J C [ b p M k O _ E [ P _ q Z M k O C b D Q V R S a l U Q V Q S ` U ` W Q S T R l Yr b E [ P c O J C [ b j D H B b [ \ [ g ] L M A [ \ D a S U ` V S h Q U a S U X Q S ` ` l W a l S ` T ` YL I _ C J k M A \ O P s D a R U S T l U a R ` S ` X R X S l T RF b K C P [ b c D b J O \ t D O \ J B j M u D O J J C D ` T a S R X U X h T S T Q Q W T X S V U V Yn C b O b H D v M w C H s D P e T ` X S a X U T ` X S a X U Ut I c O b k D e [ I P H D e ^ M i c O P J X V R S T Q U X T U S ` a V W a R S X U Q Yx D g O \ m M i H O P y [ P [ I g B X X U S U a U X ` T S U ` h a T S U X h^ D c [ H P O J C H i D P K C H D e N M u D e H [ y ] V U l S a T U T R a S ` X Q W R ` S T X V YZ P [ o D P J ] L M L _ O c e R R h S l T U ` X h S l R X W a Q U S U a T Yw O P C O b H D e J [ y D c D J E P [ c I b _ D P e o D b _ Q R S X a U V V S T Q U l X S ` a UN A A i D H [ b _ t [ c D e ^ C e H [ I b J W ` l S U U U Y W T X S R X U Y W Q T S R X U YA [ P o [ P O J D Z P [ K C e C [ b E [ P u O _ ^ D y J W ` X ` S h X U Y W ` T V S U V X Y W ` X S a R X Yz J B D P w O P C O b H D e W a Q R S U U U Y W X l a S h h T Y W Q X l S h h T YA [ P o [ P O J D r J D c e Q S l R U S ` X U Q S l Q T S X V l W Q X S U ` ` Y' { | ? } ~ { { � � { � � } � � | { a V S U R X S U U U a l S U T h S l U U W a S h T X S ` U U Yk [ \ \ [ K D P i o D H C E C H � P O b J e W i D D j O y \ D X Y U a T ` S V ` Q a T ` S V ` Qk [ \ \ [ K D P z J B D P � P O b J e W i D D j O y \ D X Y U a U Q S l R U a U Q S l R Uk [ \ \ [ K D P A [ c c I J D _ i I c e O H H [ I b J C b g O _ � I e J c D b J U Q R h S R U U Q R h S R U U' { | ? } ~ { { � � { � � } � � | { � � � { | | 8 � � � 8 | 1 � | � ' a V S U R X S U U U a l S l a l S R h Q W a S ` X l S ` U V Y� + / . / , ( 6 � � �k D K D b I D i I o o [ P J � P O b J W ` S Q h l S U U U Y W ` S Q h l S U U U Y Uu I e C b D e e k O J D e W ` S l V ` S V X U Y W ` S V T R S U l ` Y W a h U S Q X ` Yv D � t [ c D e u [ b I e W Q S Q l h S U U U Y W Q S Q l h S U U U Y UA [ I b H C \ j O G n P D D � D � P O b J W T h S U U U Y W T h S U U U Y UA [ I b H C \ j O G k D � I C P D c D b J W l S T V T S a T U Y W l S T V T S a T U Y U� { � { � � { � � } � � | { � � � � : : : � � ; � � � � � � < 9 � � ; � � 9 � � � < 9 �� 5 7 4 5 � + / ( � � | . 7 ( � � / 6 ( ) � � ( / 6 7 2 | ( � + � + . / , ( | ( � ( ) * ( : ; � : � 9 � < ; � : � 9 � <� 8 � � � ~ 8 � � | } 4 � � } 8 � � 8 � { � { | � � � � � � � � � � : : : � � ; � < � � � < : � � � ; � < � � � < : � �

Page 13



�

� � � �   ¡ ¢ � £ ¤ ¥ ¦ § � £ ¨ © � ¡ ¢ ¥ ª ¡ « ¬ ­ � ® ¯ ¬ £ � ° ± ² ² ± ¨ ± � � ¡ ¢ ¬ ° ³ ± £ « ¯ ´ µ ¶ ·® � £ § ¸ « � ¹ º ± » ¸ ¡ � � ³ � ­ » � £� ¼ � ± ¢ ¬ ° ® � £ § ¸ « � ¤ ½ ¾ µ µ µ ¿ À © ² ± ¡ ± � ¸ ¬ ¡Á Â Ã Ä Å Ä Æ Ä Á Ç È Ã É Ä Ê Á Ë Ë Ì Í Î Ï Ð Ñ Ë Ò Ó Ô Í Õ Ö Ð Ð Ë × Ø Ì Ø ÙÚ Û Ü Ý Þ ß à Ý á â ã Ü ä Ý å æ ç è é ê Ü ë â ì í Ü î ë ê â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì ñÚ ë ê ð ë ê é ã Ý Ú ë ì ã ì å ò æ ç ó Ý ï â á Ý ï Ú ë î ì â ô ã é î á õ ö ÷ ð Ý á Ü é ô Ü ì ã ø ï ä Ü á Ý Ý à ð Ý î ï Ü ã â ê Ý ñù ë ô Ü á õ å ú æ ç û ú ü ý ì é ô é ê õ á ë ì ã ì â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï é ì ê Ý ì â ô ã ë Þ ä é á é î ã ð ë ì ã ìé î ï ì ã é Þ Þ ì Ý á ë î ï í Ý î ã þ ë Þ Þ ì Ý ã ÿ õ ì ð Ý î ï ë î ø � Ý î á õ ì ã é Þ Þû ò � ý ñ � î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î é î â í ÿ Ý ê ë Þ ÷ â ì ã é Ü î é ÿ ô Ý ÷ Û Ý ð ð Ý õð ê ë � Ý á ã ì ã ê é î ï ì ë Þ û ò � ý ñ � Ü î ë ê â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì ë Þ û ú ý ñÈ � È Í � � � ¶ ¤ å û � � ý Ü ì ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � ë Þ â î ì ð Ý î ã ê Ü î �Þ Ý î á Ý ï � ê é î ã ì � ê Ý Þ Ý ê ã ë 
 é ÿ ô Ý ü ç ñÄ Á � � � � � Í � � Á � � � Ç � Ã È Ã Ä � � Á Ë Ë Ì Ó � Î Á Ð Ó � Ì Ð � Ò � � Î � � � � � � � � × Î � � � � Ô Ä � � Ø � � � � � � Ó ÙÚ Ú 
 è ò � ó Ý ï â á Ý ï Ü î á ë í Ý Þ ë ê Ú Ú 
 è ê Ý ð ê Ý ä Ü ë â ì á â ì ã ë í Ý ê ìá é î á Ý ô ô Ü î � â ì Ý ë Þ ã Û Ý ì Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ñÚ ë í í â î Ü ã õ ÷ é Þ Ý ã õ å � ò ç û ò æ ý â î ì ð Ý î ã  Ú Ú á ë î ã ê Ü ÿ â ã Ü ë î þ ë Þ Þ ì Ý ã ÿ õ û � ý ë ã Û Ý ê á ë ì ã ì ñû � æ ý ! Ü ô ô ÿ Ý ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � ë Þ â î ì ð Ý î ãê Ü î � Þ Ý î á Ý ï � ê é î ã ì ñÚ ë í í â î Ü ã õ " é ô ô ì ö Ú Ý î ã ê Ý ì å ò � ç # â Ü î ã ë î " é ô ô é ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô á ë ì ã ì å ê é ã Ý ì û ò ñ � ý é î ï Ý ì ã Ü í é ã Ý ïâ ã Ü ô Ü ã õ á ë ì ã ì û ò ñ � ý ç $ û � ý é ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô Ü î á ë í Ý  Ü î � % Ý ë ê � Ýù é ä Ü ô Ü ë î ñß á ë î ë í Ü á & Ý ä Ý ô ë ð í Ý î ã å æ ç � î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î ì é ô é ê Ü Ý ì é î ï ë ã Û Ý ê ê â î î Ü î � á ë ì ã ì ñß á ë î ë í õ ' Ú ë í í â î Ü ã õ÷ Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ì å æ ç � î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î ê é ã Ý ì é î ï ë ã Û Ý ê ê â î î Ü î � á ë ì ã ì ñß î ä Ü ê ë î í Ý î ã é ô å ò ü ç ( ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î ì é ô é ê Ü Ý ì û ú ý þ ë Þ Þ ì Ý ã ÿ õ â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì ë îá ë î ã ê é á ã á ë ì ã ì é î ï ý Ý î î Ý ô ô Ü î � á ë ì ã ì ñ" Ü � Û ÷ ã ê Ý Ý ã ) î î ë ä é ã Ü ë î * â î ï å ò � ç û ò � ý ! Ü ô ô ÿ Ý ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � ñ� é ê ý Ý ã ì å ò æ ç � î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï é � é Ü î ì ã ê é ã Ý ì ñ� Ý í ÿ Ý ê ì + ë á é ô Ü ì í % ê é î ã ì å � ú ç û � ú ý ! Ü ô ô ÿ Ý ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � ñ 
 Û Ü ì ! Ü ô ô ÿ Ýï Ü ä Ü ï Ý ï Ý 	 â é ô ô õ ÿ Ý ã ! Ý Ý î é ô ô á ë â î á Ü ô ô ë ê ì ñ÷ ð ë ê ã ì & Ý ä Ý ô ë ð í Ý î ã å ü 
 ç � î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î ì é ô é ê Ü Ý ì é î ï ë ã Û Ý ê Ý í ð ô ë õ Ý Ý á ë ì ã ì ñ û ü ý! Ü ô ô ÿ Ý ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Þ ë ê ! é ê ï Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � , ã Û Ü ì Ü ì é Ú Ú � ê é î ã Þ ë ê ã Û Ý ÷ é ã Ý ô ô Ü ã Ý Ú ô â ÿ ã ë á ê Ý é ã Ý ô Ü î ý ì ÿ Ý ã ! Ý Ý îì á Û ë ë ô ì é î ï á ë í í â î Ü ã õ á ô â ÿ ì ñ û ü ý ! Ü ô ô é ô ì ë ÿ Ý ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ïã ë Þ ë ê ! é ê ï Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � ë Þ â î ì ð Ý î ã ê Ü î � Þ Ý î á Ý ï � ê é î ã ñè é ê Ü ë â ì å æ ç è é ê Ü ë â ì í Ü î ë ê â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì ñÈ � È Í � � ¶ � · ¤ å û � 
 ý Ü ì ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � ë Þ â î ì ð Ý î ã ê Ü î �Þ Ý î á Ý ï � ê é î ã ì , ê Ý Þ Ý ê ã ë 
 é ÿ ô Ý ü ç ñ
Page 14



-

� � � �   ¡ ¢ � £ ¤ ¥ ¦ § � £ ¨ © � ¡ ¢ ¥ ª ¡ « ¬ ­ � ® ¯ ¬ £ � ° ± ² ² ± ¨ ± � � ¡ ¢ ¬ ° ³ ± £ « ¯ ´ µ ¶ ·® � £ § ¸ « � ¹ º ± » ¸ ¡ � � ³ � ­ » � £� ¼ � ± ¢ ¬ ° ® � £ § ¸ « � ¤ ½ ¾ µ µ µ ¿ À © ² ± ¡ ± � ¸ ¬ ¡Á � � � Ç � Ã Á Í È Ã � � � � � . Ã � È Ã � / � Í � É Ä . È Ã � Ã � / � � . � � � È Ã � � � Á Ë Ë Ì Ó � Î Á Ð Ó � Ì Ð � Ò � � Î � � � � � � � � × Î � � � �Ô � � Ó Ø � È Ð Ø Ë ÙÚ ë í í â î Ü á é ã Ü ë î ì å ú 0 ç � î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì ë î é ï ä Ý ê ã Ü ì Ü î � é î ï ð ê ë í ë ã Ü ë î þ Ý à ã Ý ê î é ôð ê Ü î ã Ü î � é î ï ì Ü � î é � Ý û � ü ý ñ � î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î ì é ô é ê Ü Ý ì þ ë Þ Þ ì Ý ãÿ õ é � Ý î á õ ì ã é Þ Þ û ü 0 ý ñ � Ü î ë ê ë ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë Þ û ò ü ý ë î Þ Ý Ý ìé î ï ì Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ì ñÈ � È Í � � 1 2 ¤. Ä � Ã � Ä � È � Ä . É Ã Á Ä � � Á Ë Ë Ì 3 Î � Ì � � � � Ô Í � Õ Ò Ì Á � Ì � Ó � Ð � Ù" ë â ì Ü î � 4 Ý î Ý Þ Ü ã é î ï Ú ë â î á Ü ô
 é à ò � 
 Û Ü ì Ü ì é î Ý à ã ê Ý í Ý ô õ ä ë ô é ã Ü ô Ý ÿ â ï � Ý ã ë î é � ê ë ì ì ÿ â ï � Ý ã ë Þû � 
 í ñ � Ü î ë ê î Ý ã ë ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ñ" ë â ì Ü î � & Ý ä Ý ô ë ð í Ý î ã é î ï÷ ã ê é ã Ý � õ å ü � ç ÷ ã é Þ Þ á ë ì ã ì ì é ä Ü î � ì û ü � ý þ ë Þ Þ ì Ý ã ÿ õ í Ü î ë ê ë ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì ë Þû ü ý ñù ê Ü ä é ã Ý ÷ Ý á ã ë ê " ë â ì Ü î � å ü 5 ç ÷ ã é Þ Þ á ë ì ã ì ì é ä Ü î � ì û � ú ý þ í Ü ô Ý é � Ý é î ï ô â í ð ì â í ì é ä Ü î � ìû 5 ý þ ð ô â ì ë ã Û Ý ê í Ü î ë ê â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì û � ý ñ÷ ã é õ ù â ã ÷ á Û Ý í Ý å ü 5 ç ÷ é ô é ê õ á ë ì ã ì ì é ä Ü î � ì û ò � ý $ ê Ý ï â á ã Ü ë î Ü î & Ü ì é ÿ ô Ý ï * é á Ü ô Ü ã Ü Ý ì% ê é î ã Ü î á ë í Ý û 5 ý þ ë Þ Þ ì Ý ã ÿ õ é ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô � ê é î ã ì ê Ý á Ý Ü ä Ý ï é î ïî ë ã ì ð Ý î ã Ü î õ Ý é ê ñ û ú ü ý Ü ì ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê â î ì ð Ý î ãê Ü î � Þ Ý î á Ý ï � ê é î ã ì ñ 
 Û Ý â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï Ü ì é ì é ê Ý ì â ô ã ë Þ ã Û Ýô é á ý ë Þ ê Ý Þ Ý ê ê é ô ì Þ ê ë í Û Ý é ô ã Û ì Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ì ñ" ë â ì Ü î � ( ð ã Ü ë î ì ú æ ( ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë Þ û � 
 ý ë î ÿ Ý ï ' ÿ ê Ý é ý Þ é ì ã ð é õ í Ý î ã ì $ " ë í Ý( Þ Þ Ü á Ý � ê é î ã ê Ý á Ý Ü ä Ý ï Þ ë ê ø Þ � Û é î ð ê ë � Ý á ã û ò 5 ý $ ë ã Û Ý ê í Ü î ë êë ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì û � ý ñ å û ò 5 ý ! Ü ô ô ÿ Ý ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê ë Þâ î ì ð Ý î ã ê Ü î � Þ Ý î á Ý ï � ê é î ã ì ç ñÈ � È Í � � 1 6 ¤ å û � 
 ý Ü ì ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � ë Þ â î ì ð Ý î ã ê Ü î �Þ Ý î á Ý ï � ê é î ã ì � ê Ý Þ Ý ê ã ë 
 é ÿ ô Ý ü ç ñ� � Í � � Ã � / � Á Ë Ë Ì / Î � Ò Ñ � � Ô 3 Ø � Ò Ó Å Ì Ò Ò � Ø � Ù4 â Ü ô ï Ü î � Ú ë î ã ê ë ô å ü ç � î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î ï é î � Ý ê ë â ì ì ã ê â á ã â ê Ý ì ñ& Ý ä Ý ô ë ð í Ý î ã Ú ë î ã ê ë ô å ú � 0 ç ø ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô ð ô é î î Ü î � Þ Ý Ý ì û ú � ò ý $ î Ý ã ) 
 & Ý ä Ý ô ë ð í Ý î ã á ë ì ã ìû � ý $ ë ã Û Ý ê Þ Ý Ý ë ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì û ò 
 ý $ û � ý â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï Þ ë êÝ î Þ ë ê á Ý í Ý î ã ì é ô é ê Ü Ý ì é î ï û 5 ý â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î Ý î Þ ë ê á Ý í Ý î ãÞ Ý Ý ì û 5 ý â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î é ð ð Ý é ô ì $ û ü ý í Ü î ë ê â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ìë Þ Þ ì Ý ã ÿ õ û ü 
 ý â î ï Ý ê é á Û Ü Ý ä Ý ï ÷ ò 
 � í ë î Ü ã ë ê Ü î � Þ Ý Ý ì ñ 7 ÝÝ à ð Ý á ã ã Û Ü ì ì Û ë ê ã Þ é ô ô ã ë ÿ Ý ÿ é ô é î á Ý ï ë â ã Ü î Þ â ã â ê Ý õ Ý é ê ì ñ& Ý ä Ý ô ë ð í Ý î ã ÷ Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ì ò 
 
 û 5 5 ý î Ý ã é ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô ì ã é Þ Þ Ü î � á ë ì ã ì ã ë í Ý Ý ã ã Û Ý Û Ü � Û! ë ê ý ô ë é ï ì ã Û Ý ÷ ! é ô Ý & Ý ä Ý ô ë ð í Ý î ã 
 Ý é í ì é ê Ý î ë !Ý à ð Ý ê Ü Ý î á Ü î � $ û ú ý ë Þ Þ Ü á Ý í ë ä Ý é î ï ê Ý ï Ý á ë ê é ã Ü ë î á ë ì ã ì $ û ü ýê Ý á ê â Ü ã í Ý î ã á ë ì ã ì $ é î ï û � ý ë ã Û Ý ê ñ
Page 15



8

� � � �   ¡ ¢ � £ ¤ ¥ ¦ § � £ ¨ © � ¡ ¢ ¥ ª ¡ « ¬ ­ � ® ¯ ¬ £ � ° ± ² ² ± ¨ ± � � ¡ ¢ ¬ ° ³ ± £ « ¯ ´ µ ¶ ·® � £ § ¸ « � ¹ º ± » ¸ ¡ � � ³ � ­ » � £� ¼ � ± ¢ ¬ ° ® � £ § ¸ « � ¤ ½ ¾ µ µ µ ¿ À © ² ± ¡ ± � ¸ ¬ ¡+ ë á é ô + é î ï Ú Û é ê � Ý ì ü ü û ü ú ý á ë í ð Ý î ì é ã Ü ë î é î ï ê Ý ï â î ï é î á õ á ë ì ã ì $ û ò 5 ý é ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô�  ) ù á Û é ê � Ý ì $ û � ý ë ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î ì é ô é ê Ü Ý ì $ é î ï û ò 
 ýë ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î Þ Ý Ý ì é î ï ì Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ì ñ ( Þ Þ ì Ý ã ÿ õ û ò � ý é ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô+ é î ï Ú Û é ê � Ý ì Ü î á ë í Ý þ é î ï û � � ý á ë î ã ê Ü ÿ â ã Ü ë î ì Þ ê ë í ë ã Û Ý êô ë á é ô é â ã Û ë ê Ü ã Ü Ý ì ñ+ ë á é ô ù ô é î î Ü î � ' Ú ë î ì Ý ê ä é ã Ü ë î å ò ò ç ó Ý ï â á Ý ï Þ Ý Ý ì é î ï ì Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ì Ü î ã Û Ý á ë î ì Ý ê ä é ã Ü ë î ' ï Ý ì Ü � îã Ý é í û � ý $ â î ì ð Ý î ã 9 Ý Ü � Û ÿ ë â ê Û ë ë ï ù ô é î î Ü î � � ê é î ã û æ ý ñ� Ü ï  Ý î ã ù ô é î î Ü î � ÷ Ý ê ä Ü á Ýå �  ù ÷ ç 5 æ 
 Û Ý é ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô á ë ì ã ë Þ Ü í ð ô Ý í Ý î ã Ü î � ã Û Ý � Ü ï  Ý î ã ù ô é î î Ü î �÷ Ý ê ä Ü á Ý Ü ì û ò 
 � ý þ ã Û Ü ì Ü î á ô â ï Ý ì ê Ý ï â î ï é î á õ á ë ì ã ì ë Þ û � � ý ñ" ë ! Ý ä Ý ê þ û ò 5 ý á é î ÿ Ý í Ý ã Þ ê ë í ê Ý ì Ý ê ä Ý ì ñÈ � È Í � � ´ ´ : ¤ å û æ ý Ü ì ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � ë Þ â î ì ð Ý î ã ê Ü î �Þ Ý î á Ý ï � ê é î ã � ê Ý Þ Ý ê ã ë 
 é ÿ ô Ý ü ç ñÁ � � � Ã � � Ã � � Ã � / Í � � Á Ç � È � � Ä . Á � � È Í Á È � Á Ë Ë Ì Ó � Î � � � � Ð � Ó � � Î � � � � � � � Ô � Ø � Ò È � Ð � Ø Ó ÙÚ Ý í Ý ã Ý ê Ü Ý ì é î ï Ú ô ë ì Ý ïÚ Û â ê á Û õ é ê ï ì å ò 
 ç û ò 
 ý Ü ì ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � � ê Ý Þ Ý ê ã ë 
 é ÿ ô Ý ú ñ% ê ë â î ï ì � é Ü î ã Ý î é î á Ý Ú ë î ã ê é á ã å æ æ ç û ú ü ý Ü ì ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � � ê Ý Þ Ý ê ã ë 
 é ÿ ô Ý ú ñ÷ Ý ê ä Ü á Ý & Ý ô Ü ä Ý ê õ å ü ò ç ÷ é ô é ê õ â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î " Ý é ï ë Þ ÷ Ý ê ä Ü á Ý & Ý ô Ü ä Ý ê õ ð ë ì ã ñ+ Ý Ü ì â ê Ý é î ï ÷ ð ë ê ã ì Ú Ý î ã ê Ý ì æ ü û � 
 ý á ë î ã ê Ü ÿ â ã Ü ë î ã ë ! é ê ï ì ß à Ý á â ã Ü ä Ý ( Þ Þ Ü á Ý ë Þ ÷ ! é ô ÝÚ ë í í â î Ü ã õ + Ý Ü ì â ê Ý + ã ï þ û ú ý é ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô á ë î ã ê é á ã ä é ê Ü é ã Ü ë îá ë ì ã ì å â ã Ü ô Ü ã õ ö ï Ü ô é ð Ü ï é ã Ü ë î á ë ì ã ì Ý ã á ñ ç ñÚ ô Ý é î ì Ü î � å ü 
 ç ÷ ã é Þ Þ á ë ì ã ì ì é ä Ü î � ì ñÚ ë í í Ü ì ì Ü ë î Ü î � ' Ú â ì ã ë í Ý êÚ ë î ã é á ã å � 0 ç � î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î á ë î ã ê é á ã á ë ì ã ì ñÚ ë â î ã ê õ ì Ü ï Ý ' Ú ë â î ã ê õ ù é ê ý ì å ò � ç � î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î ì é ô é ê Ü Ý ì é î ï Þ Ý Ý ì é î ï ì Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ì ñù é ê ý Ü î � ' " Ü � Û ! é õ ì å ò ü � ç 9 Ý ã é ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô ð é ê ý Ü î � Ü î á ë í Ý ñù é ê ý ì ' ( ð Ý î ÷ ð é á Ý ì ò 5 9 Ý ã ë ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î ð ô é õ Ý 	 â Ü ð í Ý î ã þ í é Ü î ã Ý î é î á Ý é î ïð â ê á Û é ì Ý ñù â ÿ ô Ü á Ú ë î ä Ý î Ü Ý î á Ý ì å ü 5 ç 9 Ý ã â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î á ë î ã ê é á ã á ë ì ã ì þ Ý î Ý ê � õ á ë ì ã ì é î ï ê é ã Ý ì ñó Ý á õ á ô Ü î � ' 7 é ì ã Ý � Ü î Ü í Ü ì é ã Ü ë î å ò ò æ ç û ò 
 � ý î Ý ã é ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô Ü î á ë í Ý Þ ê ë í % é ê ï Ý î 7 é ì ã Ý ÷ á Û Ý í Ý þé î ï û � 5 ý ì é ä Ü î � ì ë î ó Ý á õ á ô Ü î � Ú ê Ý ï Ü ã ì ñ û � 
 ý ! Ü ô ô ÿ Ýê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � å ê Ý Þ Ý ê ã ë 
 é ÿ ô Ý ú ç ñó Ý Þ â ì Ý Ú ë ô ô Ý á ã Ü ë î ö ÷ ã ê Ý Ý ãÚ ô Ý é î ì Ü î � å ú æ ò ç 9 Ý ã á ë î ã ê é á ã é î ï á ë î ã ê é á ã ä é ê Ü é ã Ü ë î ì é ä Ü î � ì � ê Ý ô é ã Ý ï ã ëÜ í ð ô Ý í Ý î ã é ã Ü ë î ë Þ î Ý ! á ë î ã ê é á ã ñ û ò ò ý ! Ü ô ô ÿ Ý ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ëê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � ë Þ â î ì ð Ý î ã ê Ü î � Þ Ý î á Ý ï � ê é î ã ì å ê Ý Þ Ý ê ã ë
 é ÿ ô Ý ü ç ñ
Page 16



;

� � � �   ¡ ¢ � £ ¤ ¥ ¦ § � £ ¨ © � ¡ ¢ ¥ ª ¡ « ¬ ­ � ® ¯ ¬ £ � ° ± ² ² ± ¨ ± � � ¡ ¢ ¬ ° ³ ± £ « ¯ ´ µ ¶ ·® � £ § ¸ « � ¹ º ± » ¸ ¡ � � ³ � ­ » � £� ¼ � ± ¢ ¬ ° ® � £ § ¸ « � ¤ ½ ¾ µ µ µ ¿ À © ² ± ¡ ± � ¸ ¬ ¡� Ü î ë ê î Ý ã ä é ê Ü é î á Ý ì å � 
 ç � Ü î ë ê ë ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì ë î ÷ ð ë ê ã ì ù Ü ã á Û Ý ì ê Ý Ý î Ý ê � õ á ë ì ã ì é î ïê é ã Ý ì ë Þ Þ ì Ý ã ÿ õ â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì ë î ð ê ë á â ê Ý í Ý î ã é î ïá ë í í Ü ì ì Ü ë î Ü î � Ý ã á ñÈ � È Í � � < < µ ¤ å û ò ò ý Ü ì ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � ë Þ â î ì ð Ý î ã ê Ü î �Þ Ý î á Ý ï � ê é î ã ì , ê Ý Þ Ý ê ã ë 
 é ÿ ô Ý ü ç ñ� Ã . Ä Á È � . � Å Á � . � � . Í È Ä � Ä . É Ã Á Ä � � Á Ë Ë Ì Ó � Î � Ò Ñ Ø Ì Ê � � Ø Ë Ë Ò = � È Î � � Ë > Ð ? Ô � Ø Ì @ . Ø Ö A Ð Ì Ö ÙÚ ë ê ð ë ê é ã Ý Ú ë ì ã ì 
 9 Ü ô ä é ê Ü é î á Ý ñÈ � È Í � µÄ � Ä . / Ä � Á � � � Í � � Ã � / � Á Ë Ë Ì Í Î Ï Ð Ñ Ë Ò Ó Ô � Ò Ë Ë Ø Å Ø > @ Ì Ò Ë Ë Ùß í Ý ê � Ý î á õ ù ô é î î Ü î � å � ç � Ü î ë ê â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î ì â ð ð ô Ü Ý ì é î ï ì Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ì ñÈ � È Í � � · ¤� Ã . Ä Á È � . � Å . Ä / Ä � Ä . Í È Ã � � Ô � Ò � Ò . Ø � � Ò Ù÷ ã ê é ã Ý � Ü á & Ü ê Ý á ã ë ê ü � Ü î ë ê ë ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï � ä é á é î á õ é ô ô ë ! é î á Ý ñÈ � È Í � :Ã È � Ä . É Ã Á Ä � � Á Ë Ë Ì � Î � Ò Ñ Ø Ì Ê � � Ø Ë Ë Ò = Ô Í � Ö = Á Ð Ë Ò Ù) 
 �  ) ù å ò � ç + ë ! Ý ê ã Û é î Ý à ð Ý á ã Ý ï �  ) ù á Û é ê � Ý ì û 0 ý þ 9 Ý ! 4 â ê ï Ý î ì% ê é î ã û æ ý ñÈ � È Í � � ¶ 6 ¤Ä � É Ã . � � � Ä � È Í � Â Ä Í � È Â � Á Ë Ë Ì Î � Î � � � � Ð � Ó Ô È Ì Ø > Ò = Ï Ò Ø � � � Ò Ùß î ä Ü ê ë î í Ý î ã é ô ÷ Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ì å � � ç + ë ! Ý ê ã Û é î Ý à ð Ý á ã Ý ï �  ) ù Ü í ð ô Ý í Ý î ã é ã Ü ë î á Û é ê � Ý ì ï â Ý ã ëâ î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï é á ê ë ì ì ã Û Ý � Ü ï  Ý î ã ß î ä Ü ê ë î í Ý î ã é ô " Ý é ô ã Ûì Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ñù ë ô ô â ã Ü ë î Ú ë î ã ê ë ô å ú � ç û � æ ý â î ì ð Ý î ã ø Ü ê # â é ô Ü ã õ & ß * ó ø % ê é î ã ! Ü ô ô ÿ Ý ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ïã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � $ û ò 
 ý Ú ë î ã é í Ü î é ã Ý ï + é î ïâ î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì $ û ò � ý ø Ü ê ù ë ô ô â ã Ü ë î â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì ë Þ Þ ì Ý ã ÿ õû ü ý ë ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î ß î ä Ü ê ë î í Ý î ã ù ê ë ã Ý á ã Ü ë î ø á ã ñ( ã Û Ý ê å * ë ë ï ÷ é Þ Ý ã õ þ á Ý í Ý ã Ý ê Ü Ý ì þÛ Ý é ô ã Û ' ì é Þ Ý ã õ é î ï î ë Ü ì Ýá ë î ã ê ë ô ç å � ç � Ü î ë ê â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì ñÈ � È Í � � � 1 ¤ å û � æ ý Ü ì ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � ë Þ â î ì ð Ý î ã ê Ü î �Þ Ý î á Ý ï � ê é î ã ì , ê Ý Þ Ý ê ã ë 
 é ÿ ô Ý ü ç ñÃ � È Ä . � Í � Í Ç � Ã È � Á Ë Ë Ì � Î � Ò Ñ Ø Ì Ê � � Ø Ë Ë Ò = Ô . � > � Á Ë Ø Ì @ Ò Ùø â ï Ü ã ÷ Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ì ú û ú ý ë ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î ã Û Ý ê Ý á Û é ê � Ý Þ ë ê ã Û Ý �  ) ù ø â ï Ü ã ì Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ñ
Page 17



B

� � � �   ¡ ¢ � £ ¤ ¥ ¦ § � £ ¨ © � ¡ ¢ ¥ ª ¡ « ¬ ­ � ® ¯ ¬ £ � ° ± ² ² ± ¨ ± � � ¡ ¢ ¬ ° ³ ± £ « ¯ ´ µ ¶ ·® � £ § ¸ « � ¹ º ± » ¸ ¡ � � ³ � ­ » � £� ¼ � ± ¢ ¬ ° ® � £ § ¸ « � ¤ ½ ¾ µ µ µ ¿ À © ² ± ¡ ± � ¸ ¬ ¡È � È Í � 1Å Ã � Í � Á Ä � Á Ë Ë Ì � Î � Ò Ñ Ø Ì Ê � � Ø Ë Ë Ò = Ô � � > @ É � > @ Ò Ì Ó Ù* Ü î é î á Ü é ô ÷ Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ì 
 9 Ü ô è é ê Ü é î á Ý ñÈ � È Í � µÂ Ç � Í � . Ä � � Ç . Á Ä � � Á Ë Ë Ì È Î � � Ë > Ð ? Ô � Ò � Ø � � Ø Ì � Ù( ê � é î Ü ì é ã Ü ë î é ô & Ý ä Ý ô ë ð í Ý î ã å ò � ç û 5 ý â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î á ë ê ð ë ê é ã Ý ã ê é Ü î Ü î � ! Ü ô ô ÿ Ý ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ëê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � $ û ú ý â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î Û Ý é ô ã Û ì á ê Ý Ý î Ü î �á ë ì ã ì ! Ü ô ô ÿ Ý ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � $ é ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ôî Ý ã ì é ä Ü î � ì ë Þ û ü ý ñÈ � È Í � � ¶ · ¤� Ä / Í � � Á Ë Ë Ì � Î � Ò Ñ Ø Ì Ê � � Ø Ë Ë Ò = Ô 3 Ð � � � > Ø Ì Õ Ð Ì Ð � � � Ù+ Ý � é ô �  + ÷ å � ç � Ü î ë ê â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ñß à ã Ý ê î é ô + Ý � é ô * Ý Ý ì ò 0 ø ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô Ý à ã Ý ê î é ô ô Ý � é ô é ï ä Ü á Ý ñÈ � È Í � ¶ �� Ä � � Á . Í È Ã Á � Ä . É Ã Á Ä � � Á Ë Ë Ì Í Î Ï Ð Ñ Ë Ò Ó Ô × Ø � � Ò Ì � � Ò Ï Ò Ó > Ð Õ = Ù& Ý í ë á ê é ã Ü á ù ê ë á Ý ì ì å � ü ç ÷ é ä Ü î � ì ë î � Ý î Ý ê é ô ï Ý í ë á ê é ã Ü á á ë ì ã ì Ü î á ô â ï Ü î � ã ê é Ü î Ü î � ñø ï í Ü î Ü ì ã ê é ã Ü ë î 0 9 Ý ã ì ã é Þ Þ á ë ì ã ì ë ä Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ñß ô Ý á ã Ü ë î ì ' ß ô Ý á ã ë ê é ôó Ý � Ü ì ã ê é ã Ü ë î å ú ò ç û ú ò ý é ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô Ü î á ë í Ý ê Ý á Ý Ü ä Ý ï ã ë Þ â î ï Ü î ï Ü ä Ü ï â é ôÝ ô Ý á ã ë ê é ô ê Ý � Ü ì ã ê é ã Ü ë î ñ å 
 Û Ü ì Ü ì ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê ã ë� 
 ò � ö ò � � ê Ý Þ Ý ê ã ë 
 é ÿ ô Ý ü ç ñÈ � È Í � � · · ¤ å û ú ò ý ! Ü ô ô ÿ Ý ê Ý 	 â Ý ì ã Ý ï ã ë ê ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê Ü î ã ë � 
 ò � ö ò � ë Þ â î ì ð Ý î ãê Ü î � Þ Ý î á Ý ï � ê é î ã ì , ê Ý Þ Ý ê ã ë 
 é ÿ ô Ý ü ç� . � � Ä . È � � Á Ë Ë Ì � Î � Ò Ñ Ø Ì Ê � � Ø Ë Ë Ò = Ô Í � � Ò Í Ö Ø � Ó Ù" Ý é ô ã Û ' ÷ é Þ Ý ã õ å ú ç ÷ é ä Ü î � ë î ÿ ë ë ý ì é î ï � ë â ê î é ô ì ñù ê ë ð Ý ê ã õ ÷ Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ì å ü 
 ç � î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î ì é ô é ê Ü Ý ì û ò ú ý $ â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î ð é ð Ý ê û ú ý $â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ë î í Ü ô Ý é � Ý û ü ý $ ë ã Û Ý ê ì í é ô ô â î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì û 0 ý ñø ï í Ü î Ü ì ã ê é ã Ü ä Ý 4 â Ü ô ï Ü î � ì å ü ü ç 9 Ý ã â ã Ü ô Ü ã õ á ë ì ã ì ì é ä Ü î � ì û ò � ý $ ÷ Û Ý Ý ê î Ý ì ì ë Þ Þ Ü á Ý ì é ä Ü î � ìû ò � ý $ é î ï û ü ý Ý à ã ê é Ü î á ë í Ý é á Û Ü Ý ä Ý ï ë î ì Ý ê ä Ü á Ý Þ Ý Ý ì ñù ê ë ð Ý ê ã õ � é î é � Ý í Ý î ã å � ü ç 9 Ý ã é ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô ð ê ë ð Ý ê ã õ ê Ý î ã é ô Ü î á ë í Ý ñÈ � È Í � � ¶ ´ µ ¤� È Â Ä . É Í . Ã Í � Á Ä � Ô È � Ï Ä � Ä È Å . � � È � È Í � Ç � � Ä . � � Ä � � Ù
Page 18



C

� � � �   ¡ ¢ � £ ¤ ¥ ¦ § � £ ¨ © � ¡ ¢ ¥ ª ¡ « ¬ ­ � ® ¯ ¬ £ � ° ± ² ² ± ¨ ± � � ¡ ¢ ¬ ° ³ ± £ « ¯ ´ µ ¶ ·® � £ § ¸ « � ¹ º ± » ¸ ¡ � � ³ � ­ » � £� ¼ � ± ¢ ¬ ° ® � £ § ¸ « � ¤ ½ ¾ µ µ µ ¿ À © ² ± ¡ ± � ¸ ¬ ¡÷ Ü ã ã Ü î � ÿ ë â ê î Ý 
 ë ! î Ú Ý î ã ê Ý& Ý ä Ý ô ë ð í Ý î ã � 
 è é ê Ü é î á Ý ã ë ÿ Ý Þ â î ï Ý ï ë â ã ë Þ � Ý î Ý ê é ô õ Ý é ê , Ý î ï á ë ê ð ë ê é ã Ýâ î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ñø ê ã ì ß ä Ý î ã ì ' ø á ã Ü ä Ü ã Ü Ý ì ü ø ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô ì ð Ý î ï ã ë ì â ð ð ë ê ã ã Û Ý 7 7 ò á ë í í â î Ü ã õ � ê é î ãì á Û Ý í Ý ñÈ � È Í � 6 :� � � Ê � Ä . É Ã Á Ä Ï Ç � / Ä È � Ú Ú � D E " ë í Ý ì & Ü ì á ë â î ã å � æ ç ø ï ï Ü ã Ü ë î é ô  Ú Ú ÷ Ý á ë î ï " ë í Ý ì ï Ü ì á ë â î ã � ê é î ã ñÚ ë ê ð ë ê é ã Ý ù ê ë ä Ü ì Ü ë î Þ ë ê ÿ é ï ï Ý ÿ ã å ú ü ç ) í ð ê ë ä Ý í Ý î ã Ü î ë â ã ì ã é î ï Ü î � ï Ý ÿ ã þ¦ � ¯ � £ F ± £ ¸ ± � ¸ ¬ ¡ ¨ Gó Ý ä Ý î â Ý * â î ï Ü î � ë Þ Ú é ð Ü ã é ôß à ð Ý î ï Ü ã â ê Ý � ü � î ï Ý ê ì ð Ý î ï ì ê Ý ð ë ê ã Ý ï Ü î ì Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ÿ â ï � Ý ã ì ! Û Ü á Û é ê Ý ã ë ÿ Ýâ ì Ý ï ã ë Þ â î ï á é ð Ü ã é ô Ý à ð Ý î ï Ü ã â ê Ý ñù ô é õ é ê Ý é ì á ë í í â ã Ý ï ì â í ì å � � 
 ç ø á á ë â î ã Ü î � Ý î ã ê õ ã ë í Ý Ý ã % ê é î ã 
 Û ë ê î ã ë î H ì ê Ý 	 â Ü ê Ý í Ý î ã ì ñÈ � È Í � � È Â Ä . É Í . Ã Í È Ã � � � � ´ : � ¤Ú ë ê ð ë ê é ã Ý ) ã Ý í ì å � ü ç ) î ã Ý ê Ý ì ã ì é ä Ü î � ì ë î Þ Ü î é î á Ý ô Ý é ì Ý ì þ â î ì ð Ý î ã Ý é ê í é ê ý Ý ïê Ý ì Ý ê ä Ý ì û ú � ý $ � ê é î ã ê Ý á Ý Ü ä Ý ï û ò æ ý $ é î ï Ý à ã Ý ê î é ô Ü î ã Ý ê Ý ì ãë Þ Þ ì Ý ã ÿ õ ð Ý î ì Ü ë î ì é ï � â ì ã í Ý î ã ñ� ¶ I 2 � : ¤ J ¦ J K L M ¿ N ¦ O ¿ O ¦ L L ¦ F ¿ O O ¿ P   ¿ ® J ®ò æ � ó Ü î � * Ý î á Ý ï % ê é î ã ó ë ô ô ë ä Ý ê ó Ý 	 â Ý ì ã ìò 
 � ( ã Û Ý ê % ê é î ã ó Ý 	 â Ý ì ã ì´ � � J ¦ J K L Q O K � J O ¦ L L ¦ F ¿ O O ¿ P   ¿ ® J ®� � 0 Ú ë í í â ã Ý ï ÷ â í � ù ô é õ ß 	 â Ü ð í Ý î ã� ¶ I 1 : � ¤ J ¦ J K L   � R ¿ O ® S ¿ � R K N J ¿ O S O ¦ S ¦ ® ¿ R O ¦ L L ¦ F ¿ O¦ N Q O K � J ®

Page 19



T

U VWXYZ[ YW\\] Y]̂ V_ Ẁa]\ Zb VWc\de fghiU
j YkVWc\ lWmWlWVn Yn\ oXWVVZò\ WV] ckp YcXYn qVor YX\p oV\j YW] Vs̀Wa]\ Z\ VWcmqoV\ loVt

ouYV\j VYYZYWVm̀q
\ odvwe x

^ yz YV{j V] m\ ò|\ WZ} `\| Xj YyY ~}{Ub VWc\
iv fd��| oyYloVt] cm\]aa] c\j Yq] qYa] cY fkVWc\p c̀n] ck\ oz YXWVV] Yn ouYV\ oqVoyo\ Y\j Y|\ WZ} `\

mXj YyYm] cdvwg�we x� YWVYWa moa oot] ckW\ XWVVZ] ckò\a WVkYVqVor YX\ m fWcn\j] mVoaa ouYV

l]aaj Ya qp c̀n\j Y] cXVYWmYn Xom\ m x

^ yz YV{j V] m\ ò� WVy� oyYm � YWa\j Z} Yoqa Y
b VWc\

d fhiw
�] ck �p YcXYn kVWc\\ oXouYV\j YXom\ op WcYuWa Ẁ\] oca W\ YV] c\j YZYWV x

^ yz YV{j V] m\ ò� oyY�pp] XY b VWc\
w� fediU
j Y� oyY�pp] XYp̂ kj Wc� oXWaa Z� ckWkYn|\ Wpp Y� �kVW\] WmXj YyYkVWc\j Wmz YYcyWn Y

WuW]a Wza Y\ oqVou]n YWXXoyyon W\] oc fp] cWcX] Wa Wmm] m\ WcXYqYcn] ckWXXYmm\ olYap WVY

z YcYp]\ moVmYX̀V] ckYyqa oZyYc\ Wcn] c\ YkVW\] ocm̀qqoV\ xU lop̂ kj WcVYX] q] Yc\ mWVV] uYn

] c� Wc̀WVZdvwg Wcn WVYXoc\] c̀] ck\ oVYXY] uYp `aa] c\ YkVW\] ocm̀qqoV\p Voy\j Y� òm] ck

| YVu] XYmU YWy x

� Wu]n{a]pp oVn| m̀\ W] cWza Y |j YqqYZb VWc\wg f���[]
k� o\\ YVZ� c̀n] cklj] Xj] mV] ck �p YcXYnp oV̀mY] cdvwg�we x

� WuYUj oyWm
����� oXWa } Vor YX\p c̀n
ww fdhe[ `n kY\] m] c\ Ycn Ynp oVVYXZXa] ckqVoyo\] ocXWyqW] kclj] Xj l]aaz Y] yqa YyYc\ Yn� c̀Y

dvwg x

� yyW�] kk] cm� Yc\{ òc\ Z { òcX]ab VWc\
� fdvv
b VWc\ yocYZp oV\j Y| W\ Yaa]\ Y{a `z WmqWV\ op\j Y| qoV\� cka Wcn qVoqomWa\ oXVYW\ Ya] ct m

z Y\ lYYcmXj ooa mWcn Xoyỳc]\ ZXa `z mn V̀] ckdvwg�we x

� yyW�] kk] cm� yYVk] ck Xoyỳc]\] Ym } Vor YX\� c̀n
wv fvvvU oXoc\] c̀YloVt] ck] c| lWa Yl]\j� Yn lWZWcnb VWuYmj Wyoc\j YWyYcn Yn qVoqomWa Wm

WkVYYn l]\j� Yc\} oa] XY x

� yyW�] kk] cm� Ym\ oVW\] uY � m̀\] XYb VWc\
� fhdv
� YXY] uYnp Voy\j Y� Yc\} oa] XY\ oXoc\] c̀Y\ oV̀c\ VW] c] ckl]\j o\j YVXòcX]a m x

� yyW�] kk] cmU Vòza Yn� Wy]a] Ym
b VWc\

i� fdvwU
j] m] mn Ỳ\ oWc̀cn YVmqYcn l]\j] c\j Y� Wy]a Z| q̀qoV\U YWy] cVYa W\] oc\ oz o\j Xoc\ VWX\ m

Wcnj Wu] ckco\ m̀Yn\j YXoc\] ckYcXZq̀\ Wm]n Y xn̂n]\] ocWaa Z f\j YVYlWmWc̀c
n YVmqYcn

Page 20



��
l]\j] c\j Y\ VW] c] ckYa YyYc\ op\j Yz `n kY\ WmWcWcc̀Wa YuWa Ẁ\] ocYuYc\n]n co\\ Wt Yqa WXY x

� �� ���� �� �� �����  ¡��� ¢
£¤¥ ¦§¥̈

� W\j YV] cY [ YmXoz Z© cn] u]n Ẁa �a YX\ oVWa � Yk] m\ VW\] ocb VWc\iw fvvv
� Yj WuYz YYck] uYckVWc\ yocYZp oV�a YX\ oVWa� Yk] m\ VW\] ocU VWcmp oVyW\] oc fWmWVYm̀a\ op

\j YXj WckY\ o© cn] u]n Ẁa�a YX\ oVWa� Yk] m\ VW\] oc xUj] m] mco\\ oVYqa WXYX̀VVYc\ Y�qYcn]\ V̀Y f

z `\\ oz ỲmYnp oVWnn]\] ocWa loVt WmmoX] W\ Yn l]\j©�� x

� Wu]n{a]pp oVn� W\ W� W\ Xj] ckª
« Yl[ V̀n Ycm

e fg��
« Ylz V̀n Ycmp c̀n] ckVYXY] uYn] cVYmqYX\ op cYl\ VWcmqWVYcXZV

Ys̀] VYyYc\ m x� YlWc\\ o

Voaa\j YkVWc\ mouYV\ op c̀np `\ V̀Ymop\ lWVYa] XYcXYm x

� WyYm� VYYyWc
« Y] kjz òVj oon

}a Wcc] ck� Voc\ � c̀cYVmb VWc\
e f�dg
¬ cmqYc\ cY] kjz òVj oon qa Wcc] ckkVWc\p oaa ol] ckn Ym] kcW\] ocop« Y] kjz òVj oon}a Wc

WVYWmp oV� WuYVmj Wy{ VYYt Wcn� c̀t] Vtª[ òkj\ oc x

� WuYUj oyWm
�] kj lWZmb VWc\ mw� fwhh�

YZmn olc� omYU] c\ Yn Xoc\ V]z `\] ocp oVocko] ckyW] c\ YcWcXYop m] kc] ckWcn\j Ya] kj\] ck

] cm\ Waa W\] oc x^ V\ m{ òcX]a kVWc\\ oz ỲmYnp oVm\ VYY\p V̀c]\ V̀YWcn m\ VYY\ cWyYqa W\ Y

yW] c\ YcWcXY] cdvwg�we x� c̀n] ckp Voy� WuYVmj Wy� c\ YVqV] mY} WV\ cYVmj] qp oV� YV]\ WkY

« WyYqa W\ Ym] c� WuYVmj Wy x

«] Xt­] Xt YVm{ oyỳc]\ Z�] kj\
\ o{j Waa YckYª

{ oyỳc]\ Z�] kj\
\ o[]nb VWc\ m

we fivd«
Ylz V̀n Ycmp c̀n] ckVYs̀Ym\ Yn\ oVoaa ouYV] c\ odvwg�we\ o\ oq̀q\j Y� oXWa] myVYmYVuY f

Wm] cqVYu] òmZYWVm x

«] Xt­] Xt YVm{ òcX]aU W��a oon
b VWc\

w f��e
� YXY] uYnp Voy{ Yc\ VWab ouYVcyYc\\ oj Ya ql]\j WcZpa oonn WyWkY\j W\j Wmz YYc] cX̀VVYn

n V̀] ck\j YmYuYVYlYW\j YV] c\j YqYV] on� YXYyz YVdvw� ~� WVXjdvwi xU oz Yq̀\\ o

VYmYVuYmYWVy
WVt Ynp oVpa oonn WyWkY x

� yyW�] kk] cm�] kj|\ VYY\ © ccouW\] ocp c̀nwd fvvv
� YVYs̀Ym\\j YVoaa op\j Yp] cWa qWZyYc\p Voy\j Y�] kj|\ VYY\© ccouW\] oc� c̀n\ o\j Y

|j YYVcYmmU olcU YWy x

� �� ��® ���� �� �� �����  ¡��� ¢
£̈̄ ¦°±̄

� �� ��̈¤¤ ¦¥²̈

Page 21



��

^ ccYn̂ Wym} VoqYV\ ZmYVu] XYm
z `n kY\ c̀n YVmqYcndg fvvvU op c̀n\j Ya Wcnj oan] ckmVYu] Yl x©\ lWmn YX]n Yn\ oVY �\ Ycn YV\j YXoc\ VWX\\ oWXj] YuYWz Y\\ YV

ò\ XoyYWcn\j] mj Wmn Ya WZYn\j YloVt x

U VWXYZ[ YW\\] Y¬ cmqYc\p oonj Zk] YcY
z `n kY\

d f�vvU oqVou]n YVYmòVXYmp oV\j Y\ YWylj]a m\n YWa] ckl]\j Wc̀yz YVop qo\ Yc\] Wa qVomYX̀\] ocm f\j] m

l]aa YcWza Y\j Y\ YWy\ oqVYqWVY\j YYu]n YcXYWcnn Ya] uYV\j YVYk̀a W\ oVZmYVu] XYn V̀] ck\j] m

\ VWcm]\] ocqYV] on x

U VWXYZ[ YW\\] Y{ oc\ Wy] cW\ Yn� Wcn
c̀mqYc\z `n kY\

e fe�vUj YXoc\ Wy] cW\ Yna Wcn mop\ lWVYq̀VXj WmYz Z�]n� Yc\©{Up oV\j Ymj WVYn mYVu] XY f\ oXouYV

\j YXom\ op\j Ya] XYcXY fXom\ op\ VWcmp YVn W\ WWcn] yqa YyYc\\ VW] c] ckp oV\j Yopp] XYVm] c| lWa Y x

� WyYm� VYYyWc}a Wcc] ck© cXoyY
dv fvvvU op c̀n|wve�{ oyỳc]\ Z© cp VWm\ V̀X\ V̀Y� YuZyoc]\ oV] ckmop\ lWVY] cdvwg�we x

� oj c | XWVz oVòkj�]n� Yc\� YkWa
mYVu] XYm³���|́ z `n kY\ c̀n YVmqYcnd fdvv��

�| qa WccYn\ oXoyyYcXYq
om\ �Yc\ VZ\ VW] c] ckop òVcYl� YkWâ mm] m\ Wc\ kVWn Ym] ca W\ Y

dvwi�wg x� olYuYV fa W\ YVYXV̀]\ yYc\p oVXYn m̀\ oqom\ qocY\j] m xUj] mp c̀n] ckl]aa ko\ olWVn m

\j Y\ VW] c] ckY�qYcn]\ V̀Ylj Yc{j WV\ YVYn© cm\]\ `\ Yop� YkWa� �YX̀\] uYmµ³{©��¶́ XòVmYmm\ WV\

] c^ `\ ỳcdvwg x

� YcW| yWV\� YWa\jª� Yap WVY
z `n kY\ c̀n YVmqYcni fi�i© c� YXYyz YVdvwg lYl]aa cYYn\ oqWZp oV\j Y© cuYm\ oVm] c} Yoqa Y³©]}́ WmmYmmyYc\ Wcn\j YVY

] mcoz `n kY\ Waa oXW\ Ynp oV\j] mWm\j YY�qYcmY] moca ZYuYVZ\j VYYZYWVm xUj YXWVVZp oVlWVn

lòan qWZp oV\j YyWr oV]\ Zop\j] mocY �opp Xom\ x

� YcW| yWV\{ oVqoVW\ YU VW] c] ck
z `n kY\ c̀n YVmqYcn� fevvUj YmqYcn] ma] ct Ynn] VYX\a Z\ oj olyWcZXWm

Ymj WuY\ oz YVYp YVVYnp oV© cn YqYcn Yc\� Yn] XWa

^ mmYmmyYc\ m³©�̂ m´ Wcn Wnn]\] ocWa mYmm] ocmop XòcmYaa] ck fWcn] cmoyYZYWVm
\j Yz `n kY\] m

ouYVmqYc\ xUj] mZYWV fWa\j òkj m] Xt cYmmj Wm] cXVYWmYn f\j YcW\ V̀Yop\j Ya ock\ YVy]aa cYmmYm

j WuYz YYcyoVYm\ VW] kj\p oVlWVn fWcn\j YVYp oVY\j Y©�̂ mWcn Wnn]\] ocWa XòcmYaa] ckj Wmco\

z YYcVYs̀] VYn x� Ylòana]t Y\ òmY\j] mp oVqVo �WX\] uYj YWa\j] c]\] W\] uYmY xk xqj Zm] o �\j YVWqZ f

\ oqVoyo\ YlYaa �z Y] ckW\ loVt WmlYX̀VVYc\a Zj WuYcoz `n kY\p oV\j] m x

� WuYUj oyWm
| lWa Yâa o\ yYc\ m

z `n kY\ c̀n YVmqYcnw fh�w� Ya WZYn loVt WlW]\] ckn YX] m] oc� ò\ XoyYop qVoqomYn Waa o\ yYc\\ VWcmp YV x

Page 22



�·

� WuYUj oyWm
� YZmn olc{ oWm\ Wa

qWVtz `n kY\ c̀n YVmqYcn
w f�ei� Y\ kVòcn Xocn]\] ocmn Ya WZYn loVt m x

� WuYUj oyWm
{ YyY\ YV] Ymz `n kY\

c̀n YVmqYcn
wv fvvv�] kj YV\j WcWc\] X] qW\ Yn] cXoyYlWmW

Xj] YuYn] cdvwi�wg x� �\ VWloVt m\ o] yqVouYWcn q̀n W\ Y

m] kcWkY] cWaa XYyY\ YV] Ymj Wmz YYc]n Yc\]p] Yn xUj Yz òcn WVZp YcXY] c� ouY� WcY{ YyY\ YVZ] m

] ccYYn op VYp V̀z] mj yYc\� VYqW] VWmmoocWmq
omm]za Y\ oqVYuYc\p V̀\j YVn Y\ YV] oVW\] oc x

� WuYUj oyWm
�]\\ YVq] Xt] ckz `n kY\

c̀n YVmqYcn
wg fvvv{ oc\ V]z `\] oc\ olWVn m\j YVYp V̀z] mj yYc\ op\j Yp oo\z V]n kYl]\j] c\j Y|\ ocYz V]n kY} ocn m]\ Y f] c

qWV\ cYVmj] ql]\j� WuYVmj WyU olc{ òcX]a x

� WuYUj oyWm
� qYc| qWXYmz `n kY\

c̀n YVmqYcn
dv fvvv� Yp V̀z] mj yYc\ op­] cXYc\b WVn YcmWcn� Yyma YZ� YXVYW\] ocqa WZWVYWm x

� WuYUj oyWm
| qoV\ mp WX]a]\] Ym z `n kY\ c̀n YVmqYcnwv fvvv} WV\ cYVmj] qXoc\ V]z `\] oc\ olWVn mVYyYn] Wa loVt mW\« Yl� oWn qV] oV\ oXoyqa Y\] ck\ VWcmp YV\ o

« Yl�n� oo\z Waa{a `z x

� WuYUj oyWm
| YWp Voc\z `n kY\

c̀n YVmqYcn
g fvvv{ oc\ V]z `\] oc\ omWp Y\ ZloVt mVYs̀] VYn\ oza oXt op Wc̀c̀mYn mqWXỲcn YV\j YyW] cm\ W] VlYaa W\

[ YWXjp] Yan m x

� WuYUj oyWm
} `za] XXocuYc] YcXYmdv fvvv} `za] XXocuYc] YcXYmyW] c\ YcWcXY x¬ cn YVmqYcn\ oz YWnn Yn\ oqVoqYV\ ZmYVu] XYmVYqW] VWcn

VYcYlWa mz `n kY\ mp oVq̀za] XXocuYc] YcXYm x

� yyW�] kk] cm� Yyz YVm� oXWa] my
b VWc\ m �[ `n kY\

c̀n YVmqYcn
d� fhi�i� WlWVn mj WuYWa VYWn Zz YYcWqqVouYn fz `\ lYWlW]\\j Y] Vp] cWa Xoyqa Y\ Yn qWqYVloVtp Voy

\j YXoyỳc]\ ZkVòqm\ oyWt Y\j Yp] cWa qWZyYc\ m x� YVYs̀Ym\\j YXWVVZp oVlWVn\ oz Y

n] u]n Yn Ys̀Waa Zz Y\ lYYcWaa XòcX]aa oVm x

� yyW�] kk] cm| qoV\ m� YuYa oqyYc\
c̀n YVmqYcn

d fe�v� `\ m\ Wcn] ck| qoV\ mWcn}j Zm] XWa WX\] u]\ ZqWZyYc\ mlj] Xjj WuYz YYcWqqVouYnz `\ lYWVYr m̀\

lW]\] ckp oV\j Y] Vp] cWa qWqYVloVt x� YWa moVYs̀Ym\\j YVoaa op̧dgvp oV\j Y| lWa Y¹ ò\j

� YuYa oqyYc\� c̀n WmWcò\ m\ Wcn] ckWlWVnj WmZY\\ oz YXa W] yYn x

Page 23



�º

� yyW�] kk] cm� cu] VocyYc\ Wa � WVn Ycm[ `n kY\
c̀n YVmqYcn

d fvvvUj Y� cu] VocyYc\ Wa� WVn Ycml]aa cYYn\ oVYqa WXY\j Y] Vj Wcn mY\ mn V̀] ckdvwg�we xUj Yz `n kY\

p oV\j YmYj Wmcolz YYcXYc\ VWa] mYna YWu] ckWkWq] cp c̀n] ckp oV\j YcYlocYm] c\j YcY�\

p] cWcX] Wa ZYWV x

� �� ��
»�¼ �¡� ��� �½�¡¢
£§̄ ¦°°°

«] Xt­] Xt YVm}a WZ^ VYWm { oyỳ\ Yn| ỳm
dgh fih�̂ XXòc\] ckWnr m̀\ yYc\\ oyYY\b VWc\Uj oVc\ ocVYXoyyY

cn W\] ocm x

� �� ��

±̈² ¦¥²¤

Page 24



�¾

^ ccYn̂ Wym
hw f�v�U o\ oq̀q\j Yz `]an] ckyW] c\ YcWcXYVYmYV

uYz Z\j Ỳcn YVmqYcn ocqVoqYV\ ZmYVu] XYm xUj] m

] cXa `n Ym\j Ỳcn YVmqYcn ocmWa WV] Ym fV̀cc] ckY�qYcmYm
Y\ X x

^ yz YV{j V] m\ ò
�� fvvv
Uj] ml]aaz ỲmYn\ oY�\ Ycn\j YXoc\ VWX\ op WyYyz YVop\j Y� òm] ck� q\] ocmWcn[ YcYp]\ mU YWy

p oVocYZYWV x

� WyYm� VYYyWc
g� f�vv
U oqVou]n YWnn]\] ocWap c̀n] ck\ oVYmòVXYW

cWnn]\] ocWa qa Wcc] ckopp] XYV\ on YWa l]\j\j Y

] cXVYWmYn qa Wcc] ckloVta oWn fWcn\ on YWa l]\jz WXta ok] mm̀YmWV] m] ckp Voy] yqa YyYc\ W\] ococ

cYl©U mZm\ YymWcn mj WVYn mYVu] XY x

} Y\ Y� W] cY
ev fvvv
� YkYcYVW\] ocqVor YX\ yWcWkYyYc
\ Xom\ m x

� WuYUj oyWm
�v fvvv
� Wm\ Xj V̀Xj� oWn Wmm] m\ WcXY �Xoc\ V]z `\] oc\ oWXoyỳc]\ ZkVòq\ oYcWza Y\j Yy\ òcn YV\ Wt Y

VYyYn] Wa loVt m\ oWuo]np V̀\j YVn Y\ YV] oVW\] ocop\j YXa]pp Yn kY x

� WuYUj oyWm
ev fvvv
{ oc\ V]z `\] oc\ olWVn mVYp V̀z] mj] ck\j YXẀmYlWZW
\_ ỲYcz oVòkj qV] oV\ oj Wcn] ckVYmqocm]z]a]\ Z

p oV\j Yp WX]a]\ Z\ o_ ỲYcz oVòkj�] mj YVZU V̀m\ Wcn_ ỲYcz oVòkj� WVz òVU V̀m\ x

� WuYUj oyWm
dv fvvv
� WX]a]\] Ymm\ VW\ YkZXom\ m x{ om\ mWVY\ op c̀n loVtz Y] ck̀cn YV\ Wt Yc\j Vòkj WXocm̀a\ Wc\\ o

n YuYa oqW| qoV\ m� WX]a]\ Z|\ VW\ YkZp oV| lWa YWmn] mX̀mmYn W\© cp oVyWa{ Wz] cY\ x

«] Xt­] Xt YVm
�v fvvv
|[{ qo\ Yc\] Wa Xoc\ V]z `\] ocm\ opa oonn Yp YcXYqVor YX\] c� WuYVmj Wy f\ oqq] ck̀q� cu] VocyYc\

^ kYcXZ x

� yyW�] kk] cm
wi fvvv
} WZyYc\\ o{ ooyz mp oVWz oV\] uYloVt oc\j Y� YWn mu]aa WkYj Waa x

� �� ��
¥̈̄ ¦£̄¿

Page 25



� 8

K ­ ¬ À ¡ �½Ú ë í í â î Ü á é ã Ü ë î ì ÷ Ý ê ä Ü á Ý ) î ã Ý ê Ü í ÷ â ð ð ë ê ã ò 
 þ 
 � æ% ê ë ä Ý ã ë Ü ô Ý ã ì þ + Ý õ ì ï ë ! î ú þ 0 0 �+ ë á é ô ø ê Ý é ù Ý ê á Ý ð ã Ü ë î ÷ â ê ä Ý õ � 
 ò ú ö ò � ò � þ 
 
 
ø î î â é ô Ú ë î ã ê Ü ÿ â ã Ü ë î ã ë �  ) ù � 
 ò ú ö ò � ü ú þ ú � �÷ ë Þ ã ð Û ë î Ý + Ü á Ý î á Ý ì Þ ë ê ó Ý í ë ã Ý 7 ë ê ý Ü î � ò þ 0 
 5ø î é ô õ ã Ü á é ô ê Ý ä Ü Ý ! ì ë Þ Ü î á ë í Ý Þ ê ë í 4 â ì Ü î Ý ì ì ó é ã Ý ì � þ � 
 
÷ é Þ Ý � â é ê ï Ü î � ð ë ì ã , 
 ñ � * 
 ß � 
 þ 
 
 
J ¬ � ± ² K © © £ ¬ § � ¢ ´ µ ¶ 1 ¥ ¶ · < 2 I 2 · ·� Ý í ÿ Ý ê ì ó Ý � Ý î Ý ê é ã Ü ë î % ê é î ã ì ú æ þ 
 
 

 ê é ï Ý í é ê ý ì , * é ä Ý ê ì Û é í " ë ð * Ý ì ã Ü ä é ô ò þ � � 
� é � î é Ú é ê ã é 5 
 
 Ú Ý ô Ý ÿ ê é ã Ü ë î ì þ * é ä Ý ê ì Û é í � 
 ò � 0 þ 0 � 
÷ í é ô ô 4 â ì Ü î Ý ì ì ÷ é ã â ê ï é õ � 
 ò ú � þ � 0 
Ú Û ê Ü ì ã í é ì Ú é ê ù é ê ý Ü î � Ú ë î á Ý ì ì Ü ë î � 
 ò ú � � þ 
 
 
ó Ý � Ý î Ý ê é ã Ü ë î ( Þ Þ Ü á Ý ê 
 ë ! î Ú Ý î ã ê Ý ì � 
 ò � ö ò � ú � þ æ 5 5ß á ë î ë í Ü á & Ý ä Ý ô ë ð í Ý î ã ÷ â ð ð ë ê ã ( Þ Þ Ü á Ý ê � 
 ò � ö ò � ü � þ � � �4 Ý é á Û " â ã ì , ù Û é ì Ý � ú ü þ ú � 

 Û é í Ý ì % é ã Ý ! é õ ) î î ë ä é ã Ü ë î þ % ê ë ! ã Û ' Ý î ã Ý ê ð ê Ü ì Ý + ë é î * â î ï � 
 þ æ 0 
* é ä Ý ê ì Û é í Ú ê Ý Ý ý * Ý é ì Ü ÿ Ü ô Ü ã õ 7 ë ê ý ì � ü þ 
 
 
* â ê ã Û Ý ê ß ï â á é ã Ü ë î Þ ë ê ÷ Ü ã ã Ü î � ÿ ë â ê î Ý þ ÷ á ë ð Ü î � ÷ ã â ï õ ò 
 þ 
 
 
J ¬ � ± ² K © © £ ¬ § � ¢ ´ µ ¶ 1 ¥ ¶ · ´ � µ I 6 1 :è ë ô â î ã Ý Ý ê 7 Ý Ý ý Ú é í ð é Ü � î ò þ ò 5 �* â î ï Ü î � * é Ü ê ò þ 
 � 
" Ý ê Ü ã é � Ý ù ê ë � Ý á ã ì ò 
 þ 
 
 
è ë ô â î ã Ý Ý ê ÷ ! é ô Ý ø ! é ê ï ì � 
 ò ú ö ò � � þ � æ 
÷ ! é ô Ý 
 ê â ì ã Ý Ý 9 Ý ã ! ë ê ý ß ä Ý î ã ò þ 
 � æ9 Ý ð ã â î Ý 
 Ý ê ê é á Ý � é ã Ý ê Ü é ô ì ò þ � � 

 Û Ý ÷ é ô ã % Ü ä Ý é ! é õ � 
 ò ú ö ò � ò þ ú 
 
Ú â ô ã â ê Ý % ê é î ã ì � þ 
 
 
è ë ô â î ã Ý Ý ê ì Á 7 Ý Ý ý � 4 Ü ô ô ÿ ë é ê ï ì ò þ ò æ 

Page 26



� ;

ß ä Ý î ã í é î é � Ý í Ý î ã ! ë ê ý ì Û ë ð ò þ � 
 5J ¬ � ± ² K © © £ ¬ § � ¢ ´ µ ¶ 1 ¥ ¶ · ´ · I 2 6 ¶ó Ý ï â î ï é î á õ Ú ë ì ã ì � 0 þ 
 5 òJ ¬ � ± ² K © © £ ¬ § � ¢ ´ µ ¶ 1 ¥ ¶ · · 2 I µ < ¶# â Ý Ý î ÿ ë ê ë â � Û " é ê ÿ ë â ê 
 ê â ì ã � 
 þ 
 
 
J ¬ � ± ² K © © £ ¬ § � ¢ ´ µ ¶ 1 ¥ ¶ · · µ I µ µ µ

Page 27



�Â

� ��� �¢�¡½�
Ã �¢�¡� Ä�� ��

³ Wb́ YcYVWa� YmYVuY
U op c̀n VYuYc̀YY�q

Ycn]\ V̀Y f]\ m̀mY] mm̀zr YX\\ o\j YWqqVouWa op� Yyz YVm xUj Yb YcYVWa� YmYVuYj Wmz YYc

\ oqqYn q̀] cdvw��wiz Zḑgv fvvv VYXY] uYnp oV\j Y_ ỲYcz oVòkj mYWlWaa x

³ź} YVp oVyWcXY
U o] yqVouYouYV

Waa qYVp oVyWcXY x�pp] XYVmWVY] cu]\ Yn\ om̀z y]\z]n mp oV] cn] u]n Ẁa qVoqomWa m x

³ X�́ YkYcYVW\] oc
U op c̀n� YkYcYVW\] oc} Vor YX\ m] c\j Y[ oVòkj xU oqqYn q̀z Zw̧vv fvvv] cdvw��wi WmqYV\j Y[ `n kY\ x

Page 28



�Å

� ��� �¢�¡½�
Ã �¢�¡� Ä�� ��

³ń� oXWa] my
U om̀qqoV\\j Y{ òcX]aµ m� oXWa] my^ kYcn W x

³ YÚ VWcmp oVyW\] oc
U oyYY\\j YXom\ op VYa YWm] ck\j Y} Ycm] oc� c̀nz YcYp]\ m\ om\ Wpp lj oj WuY\ Wt YcYWVa ZVY\] VYyYc\ fWcn\ op c̀n

Waa o\j YVVYn c̀n WcXZXom\ m x

³ṕ| lWa Y� oXWa� oWc� c̀n| Y\ q̀] c^ qV]advwd f]\ mq̀VqomY] m\ om̀qqoV\ uoa c̀\ WVZ fXoyỳc]\ Z foVco\ �p oV �qVop]\ oVkWc] mW\] ocmWcn\ olc

Wcn qWV] mj XòcX]a m] c| lWa Y\ oYcWza YyWcWkYyY
c\ Wcnn Ya] uYVZopa oXWa mYVu] XYmWcnp WX]a]\] Ym x| op WV\ lo

a oWcmj WuYz YYcWqqVouYn x

³ k�́ YqW] VmWcn� YcYlWa m� Yk̀a WVXoc\ V]z `\] ocmWVYyWn Y\ o\j] mp c̀np Voy\j Yb YcYVWa� c̀n x� WVkY]\ Yymop Y�qYcn]\ V̀YWVY\j Yc

Xj WVkYn\ o\j YmYVu] XYWcnp c̀n Ynp Voy\j] mVYmYVuY x

³j́[ `]an] ck� W] c\ YcWcXY
U oyYY\]\ Yymopz WXta okz `]an] ckyW] c\ YcWcXYWm]n Yc\]p] Yn] c\j Y{ òcX]aµ myYn] ỳ\ YVyyW] c\ YcWcXYqa Wc f

WmlYaa Wm̀VkYc\ oV̀cY�qYX\ Yn]\ Yym x

³]́� òm] ck
Uj] m] myWn Ỳqop Wc̀yz YVopj òm] ckVYmYVuYm f] cXa `n] ck� Yc\� Yqom]\| Xj YyY[ ocn� YmYVuY f� YXYmm] oc

� c̀n] ckVYmYVuY fWcn\j Y| q̀qoV\] ck} Yoqa Y� YmYVuY xâa\j YmYVYmYVuYml
]aaj Ya q\ op c̀n\j Yj oyYa YmmcYmm

mYVu] XY] cp `\ V̀YZYWVm x

³ŕ|\ WZ] ck} `\b VWc\ m�] ck �p YcXYn Y�\ YVcWap c̀n] ckp oVj YWa\j kVWc\ mWcn m̀qqoV\] ckqYoqa YkVWc\ m x

³t́� yq\ Z} VoqYV\ Z© c]\] W\] uY� c̀n m\ oz ỲmYn\ oWmm] m\ l]\j] c]\] W\] uYm\ oVYm\ oVYa ock �\ YVyYyq\ Zj oyYmz WXt] c\ òmY x

³á� oXWa� YuYa oqyYc\
� VWyYloVt

¬ cn YV\j Y}a Wcc] ckWcn{ oyq̀a moVZ} V̀Xj WmY^ X\dvvi fn] m\ V] X\� oXWa}a WcmlYVYVYqa WXYn l]\j� oXWa

� YuYa oqyYc\� oX̀yYc\ m³��� m´ xU okY\j YV f\j Y��� ml]aa XoyqV] mYW� oXWa� YuYa oqyYc\� VWyYloVt³���́

p oV\j Yn] m\ V] X\ Ẁ\j oV]\ ZWVYW x^ cZ̀cn YVmqYcn oVouYVmqYcn oc\j] mmYVu] XYoc\j Yb YcYVWa� c̀n l]aaz Y

\ VWcmp YVVYn\ o\j] mp c̀n fWcn m̀Yn moa Ya Z\ op c̀n��� WmmoX] W\ Yn loVt x

³ y´{ òcX]aU W�Wcn� òm] ck
[ YcYp]\ m� YmYVuY

| Wu] ckmyWn Y] cm\ Wpp] ckXom\ m] c{ òcX]aU W�[ YcYp]\ mWXj] YuYn] cdvww�wd lYVY\ VWcmp YVVYn\ o\j] mVYmYVuY

WmWkVYYnz Z{ Wz] cY\ oci� `a Zdvwd xUj] mWa mo] cXa `n Ym̀cmqYc\ kVWc\ m] cdvwd�w� xUj] ml]aaz ỲmYn\ o

XouYV\j Ymj oV\p Waa] ckVWc\] cdvwi�wg oclWVn m x

³ c´� YuYa oqyYc\{ oc\ Voa
� YmYVuY

U oXouYVWcZq
o\ Yc\] Wapa X̀\ Ẁ\] ocm] cqa Wcc] ckp YYmWcn o\j YVVYa W\ Yn] cXoyY x�̧d fvvv lWm\ VWcmp YVVYn\ o\j Y

VYmYVuYp Voy\j Ydvww�wd c̀n YVmqYcn WmWkVYYnz Z{ Wz] cY\ oci� `a Zdvwd\ oXouYV\j Ya ommop qa Wcc] ckp YYm

] cp `\ V̀YZYWVm x

³ o´[ m̀] cYmm� W\ Ym � Ym]a] YcXY� YmYVuY
U oWmm] m\\j Y{ òcX]a] cyWcWk] ck\j Yuoa W\]a]\ Zopz m̀] cYmmVW\ Y] cXoyYWmWV

Ym̀a\ opz m̀] cYmmVW\ Y

a oXWa] mW\] oc x

³ q´} VYXYq\ oVm{ òcX]aU W�
| q̀qoV\� YmYVuY

w̧dgt qW]nz Z�{{ f} oa] XYWcn�] VY\ oVYpa YX\\j YXom\ mop XòcX]az WmYm̀qqoV\a oXWa] mW\] oc x

³ s�́] mXYaa WcYòm
Uj] m] myWn Ỳqop\j YYWVyWVt Yn VYmYVuYm\j W\ WVYa Ymm\j Wcģv fvvv xUj] m] mWuW]a Wza ỲqocVYs̀Y

m\ x

Page 29



�T

® ��Æ �¡½� ��Ç ÈÄ����� É¡�

£§ ¦±̄¿ ¦¯̄̄£° ¦¤̄² ¦°̄̄Ê£ ¦²¤¿ ¦¥̄̄Ë

� YuYc̀YVoaa ouYVmqYX]p] XWcn o\j YVkVWc\ m

�d�� fihdd�� fihd

� oaa ouYV{ oyỳ\ Yn| ỳmWXXòc\] ckWnr m̀\ yYc\

�dgh fgvvdgh fgvv

® ��Æ �¡½� ��Ç ÈÄ����� É¡���� �¡Æ Ä����� �  ¡��� ��� ��¼ �¡  ¡���� ��� �½�¡¢
£§ ¦±̄¿ ¦¯̄̄£° ¦°£° ¦±²̈Ê£ ¦¥¿° ¦¥̄§Ë

[ m̀] cYmmVW\ YmuWV] WcXY

�³whv fd�í³whv fd�í

U VWcmp YV[ m̀] cYmmVW\ Ym¬ cn YVmqYcn\ o� Ym]a] WcXY� YmYVuY

�whv fd�iwhv fd�i

{ oc\ V]z `\] oc\ ob YcYVWa� c̀n[ Wa WcXY

e� fvvvw fihh fiv�w fi�e fiv�

® ��� �½��É�Ç ÈÄ����� É¡�

£§ ¦££° ¦¯̄̄£§ ¦££° ¦¯̄̄ �

® ��Æ �¡½� ��Ç ÈÄ����� É¡�

£§ ¦±̄¿ ¦¯̄̄£° ¦¤̄² ¦°̄̄Ê£ ¦²¤¿ ¦¥̄̄Ë

� oaa ouYVmop mqYX]p] X fo\j YVkVWc\ mWcn Xoyỳ\ Yn m̀ym

�
g�e fhhdg�e fhhd

� YmmÌ { òcX]aU W�� Ys̀] VYyYc\

³e f��� fw�v́³e f��� fw�v́
�

[ m̀] cYmm� W\ Ym

³i fe�i f��v́³i f��g fveí³whv fd�í

� oVỳa Wb VWc\

³i fdhe fvvv́³i fdhe fvvv́
�

{ òcX]aU W�� VYYÍYb VWc\

³�h fvvv́³�h fvvv́
�

« Yl� oyYm[ oc̀m

³d fdeh fvvv́³d fdeh fvvv́
�

[ m̀] cYmmVW\ Ym̀cn YVmqYcn\ oVYm]a] YcXYVYmYVuY

�whv fd�iwhv fd�i

® ��ÊÆ É¡Ä� É¢ËÎÃ ��� ��� ��  ���¡��Ï É��

Ê°¿ ¦¯̄̄ËÊ£ ¦¥²² ¦¥̄§ËÊ£ ¦¥¿° ¦¥̄§Ë

Page 30



·�
Ï É��� �� ÆÐÑÎÒ¨̄£¥Î£± » ¡� �� ��� Ð É� ���¨̄£¥Î£± � �½� ¢�� Ð É� ���¨̄£¥Î£± » É�� É¡�¨̄£¥Î£± Ó �¡� ����� ��� �½�¡ � �ÔÉ�¢�® �� �

Õ
Õ
Õ
Õ
Õ

© xU x� x� x© x} x{ Wq]\ Wa

|[{
v
vwd fi��wd fi��
v³ W´

�a YX\ oVWa| YVu] XYm| XWccYVm

}
ve fdvv
e fdwe
we
v

� �� ��Ñ �¡Ä�¡�� �Æ �¡½� ��¢

°̄ ¦¨̄̄£
§ ¦°§²£̈ ¦¥§²
¯

b Vòcn�a ooV� YXYq\] oc^ VYW
|[{
vig fvvv�
h fdveii fdve
v³ź

{ YyY\ YV] Ym ~� `\ V̀Y[ V̀] Wa} Vou] m] oc
|[{
v�d fghvw
v fggv³dd fviv́dd fviv³ X´

� Wm\ Y{ oaa YX\] oc ~�j YYa] Y[] cm
|[{�g fvvv�
g fvvv
v³�g fvvv́
v³ń

[ YWXj� `\ m ~�] cm\ YV� YWm f|j YqqYZ
|[{
v�d fw�v�
d fw�g
g
v

{ YyY\ YVZ{j WqYa f� ouY� WcY� WuYVmj Wy
|[{
vdg f�vvd
d f�ed³d fi��́
v

�]a\ oc{ VYYt� oo\ qW\j

|[{
v�v fvvvd
i f�w�³g fw��́g fw��³ Y´

�] kj�] mtU VYY� oVt m] c�{ YyY\ YV] Ym
|[{
vig fvvv�
v fh�g³wi fvdǵ� fehw³ṕ

� Yn] ỳ�] mtU VYY� oVt m] c�{ YyY\ YV] Ym
|[{
vwv fvvvw
e f���e f���
v³ṕ

{ m̀\ oyYV| YVu] XY{ Yc\ VY\ Ya Yqj ocZmZm\ Yy
|[{
viv fvvv
v³iv fvvv́iv fvvv³ k´

Uj Yba Yc}a WZ^ VYW

|[{
vg fvgv
g fvih
³ẃ
v

| lWaa ol� Y] m̀VY{ Yc\ VY f� Yqa WXYyYc\} ỳqm
|[{
vdv fvvvd
v fvvv
v
v

|\ YYab Wc\ VZ f| Xj ooa� WcY

|[{
vw� fvvvw
� fvvv
v
v

� Yyma YZ� Ym\}a WZ^ VYW

|[{
ve fdvv
e fdvv
v
v

� Yyma YZ� Ym\}a WZ^ VYW

}
vge fvvvg
g fhhh
³ẃ
v

« Yl}a WZ^ VYW ~© lWn Y| Xj YyY
}
vhd fdvv
v³hd fdvv́hd fdvv³j́

Uj] m\a Y�]aa{ oyỳc]\ Z� oona Wcn ~U V] yU VW]a
}
v�g fvvv
v³�g fvvv́�g fvvv³]́

Uj Yba Yc}a WZ^ VYW

}
v�v fhgv�
v fhgv
v
v

� Yyma YZ� Wm\}a WZ^ VYW

}
vgv fvvvg
v fivv
ivv
v

�pp|]\ YoqYcmqWXY
� Wt{a omY f� W]n m\ ocY� oWn
}
vd fdgv
d fdi�
³�́
v

� WuYVmj Wy� YXVYW\] ocb Vòcn© yqVouYyYc\ m
}
vde fvvvd
� f��h³d fewẃd feww³ŕ

� �� ��Ñ �ÖÖ� ¢¢� ��� ��×Ñ É¢� �Ö�¡Ñ ��� ���
¿± ¦¯̄̄°¿
° ¦¤£̄¥¿
² ¦£¥¥Ê£²¤ ¦±°°Ë̈̄¥ ¦¤̈²

�i�] kj|\ VYY\ f|]\\] ckz òVcY
|[{
vww� fvvvww
� fvvv
v
v

� �� ��� �����¡��� ��

£̄£§ ¦¯̄̄££
§ ¦¯̄̄
¯
¯

� yYVkYcXZ^ XXoyyon W\] oc ~� òmY} V̀Xj WmY
|[{
vweg fvvvwe
i fv�v³h
�v́
v

� òm] ck� YqW] Vb VWc\ mouYVev
|[{
v
vdv fe�hdv fe�h
v³t́

Page 31



·�
Ï É��� �� ÆÐÑÎÒ¨̄£¥Î£± » ¡� �� ��� Ð É� ���¨̄£¥Î£± � �½� ¢�� Ð É� ���¨̄£¥Î£± » É�� É¡�¨̄£¥Î£± Ó �¡� ����� ��� �½�¡ � �ÔÉ�¢�® �� �

Õ
Õ
Õ
Õ
Õ

� YXYc\� oyY� oWcm� lcYV� XX̀qW\] oc
|[{
v
ved fh�eed fh�e
v³t́

�] mWza Yn� WX]a]\] Ymb VWc\ m� YyYn] Wa
|[{
v
vd f�w�d f�w�
v³t́

�] mWza Yn� WX]a]\] Ym� Wcn W\ oVZb VWc\ m
|[{wvv fvvvdg
d fwgvwe
v fvhv³hd fvev́hd fvev³á

�] mWza Yn� WX]a]\] Ym� Wcn W\ oVZb VWc\ m
}hde f�ivhd
e f�ivhd
e f�iv
v
v

� �� ��Ø �É¢� ��

£ ¦¯̈° ¦¤¥̄£ ¦¿¥¿ ¦§²̄£ ¦¿¿¤ ¦¥̈̈Ê° ¦°¥§Ë²̈ ¦°̄̄

{ Wmj� YXY] q\] ck| Zm\ Yy

|[{�v fvvvg
e fg�v�
� f�ve³dd f�eídd f�ei³ y´

� �� ��Ï� �����

¿̄ ¦¯̄̄±
° ¦±¤̄¿
¿ ¦§̄°Ê̈̈ ¦¤°¥Ë̈̈ ¦¤°¥

| lWa Y� òmY�] cn ol� Yqa WXYyYc\ª[ `]an] ck

� Yp V̀z] mj yYc\

|[{
vde fi�v
v³de fi�v́
v³ c´

{ òcX]a{j Wyz YVn] k]\ Wa mZm\ Yy
|[{
vgd fvvvg
d few�
ew�
v

{ oyy]\\ YY� ooy f« Yl� s̀] qyYc\
|[{
vw� f��vw
� fe�d³w
��́
v

{ Yc\ VWa}a WÍW|]\\] ckz òVcY
|[{
vd� fgevd
� fd��³d
�d́
v

{ Yc\ VWa}a WÍW|]\\] ckz òVcY

}
vd fhev
d fhev
v
v

� oan YV© cmYV\ YV� WXj] cY

|[{
vw� fgdvw
� fgdi
i
v

� oan YV© cmYV\ YV� WXj] cY

}
v� fvvv
� fvvv
v
v

� �� ��Ò ¡�Ä�¡� Ù

£̄¥§ ¦§̄̈£̈̈ ¦¯̈£Ê̈° ¦±̈²Ë
¯

{{U­� YqW] Vmª� YcYlWa m
|[{wg fvvvw
g fvvv
v³wg fvvv́
v³ o´

_ ỲYcz oVòkj� WVz òVU V̀m\� oWc
|[{
vgv fvvvg
v fvvv
v
v

|]\\] ckz òVcY� WV� YyoV] Wa
|[{
v� fwvvw
g fgeh� fieh
v³ q´

{ Wq]\ Wa� �qWcm] ocop{{U­ mYVu] XY
}
v�� f�vv�
� f���³i
w�́
v

� YWn m{ oyỳc]\ Z{ Yc\ VY

}
v�v f�ev�
v f�ge
³í
v

� Wm\j Waa� WVy{ oyỳc]\ Z{ Yc\ VY
}
ve f��v
e f�dg
³ǵ
v

� WVY­]aa WkY� Waa

}
v� fggv
� fgih
³ẃ
v

� �� �� �����ÖÙ×Ñ �ÖÖÉ���� �¢

£± ¦¯̄̄£±
§ ¦¥̄̄£±̄ ¦§̄°Ê¤ ¦²±¥Ë
¯

�»�ÚÛÑÚÒÜ
�ÚÛÒ�» �
ÚÝÝÇ
ÆÐÑ£§̄ ¦¯̄̄£ ¦£±£ ¦¥±̄£ ¦¿̈̄ ¦±¤¥Ê££§ ¦§¤°Ë£§² ¦¤¥̈

�»�ÚÛÑÚÒÜ
�ÚÛÒ�» �
ÚÝÝÇ
Ò²̈° ¦¤¥̄£ ¦¿£° ¦¥̄̈£ ¦£§° ¦¥£¥Ê£̈² ¦§£²Ë£̈² ¦§££

�»�ÚÛÑÚÒÜ
�ÚÛÒ�» �
ÚÝÝÇ

£ ¦£̄° ¦¤¥̈̄ ¦¥°¤ ¦°²̈̄ ¦£̈§ ¦²§§Ê̈¥§ ¦°²¥Ë¿£² ¦±±¿

Page 32



··

³ WÚj Y{ Wz] cY\ ocwê qV]advw� WkVYYn Wc©{U XWq]\ Wap c̀n op̧�vv fvvv] mXVYW\ Yn\ om̀qqoV\\j Ym\ VW\ YkZp oV��©}©{U fl]\j YWXj Ẁ\j oV]\ Z

qVou]n] ckw̧vv fvvv XWq]\ Wa] cdvwd�w� Wcn l]\jp `\ V̀YXWq]\ Wap c̀n] ckWqqVouYn WmqWV\ op\j Yp oVyWa XWq]\ Waz]nn] ckqVoXYmm] cYWXj

Ẁ\j oV]\ Z xUj] mY�qYcn]\ V̀Y] mp c̀n Ynp Voy\j YkYcYVWa VYmYVuY x

³ź­ WV] WcXYn Ỳ\ oWXoyz] cW\] ocopn Ym] kcXj WckYm fXj WckY] cp V̀c]\ V̀YmqYX]p] XW\] oc fYa YX\ V] XWa loVt m̀cn YV �mqYX]p] Yn] c\ Ycn YV fWcn] mm̀Ym

n] mXouYVYnn V̀] ckm\ V] q �ò\n Ỳ\ oWkYopz `]an] ckWcn qVYu] òmyon]p] XW\] ocm xUj Ỳcn YVmqYcn oc\j Y| lWa Y� òmY�] cn olVYqa WXYyYc\

³ y´ l]aa opp mY\ moyYop\j] mouYVmqYcn fl]\j\j Yz Wa WcXYz Y] ckyY\p Voỳcn YVmqYcn mocVYuYc̀Y x

³ X�́ Yj WuYcYYn Yn\] yY\ oqVokVYmm\j YWmmY\\ VWcmp YVop\j Yz WVcqV] oV\ oXoyqa Y\] ocop\j Yò\ m\ Wcn] cka Wcn mXWq] ckloVt moc\j] mm]\ Y x^

Voaa ouYVVYs̀Ym\j Wmz YYcm̀z y]\\ Ynp oV\j] m̀cn YVmqYcn x

³ń� YXYc\ ZYWVmµ mqYcn oclj YYa Ynz] cmj Wmz YYc\ VYW\ Yn WmVYuYc̀Y fqWV\ �p c̀n Ynz Z\j YVYuYc̀Yz `n kY\ Wcn Wa mo\j YVYqW] VmWcn VYcYlWa m

VYmYVuY x� V̀\j YVoc �ko] ckY�qYcn]\ V̀Yp oVVYqa WXYyYc\z] cm] mY�qYX\ Yn\ oXoc\] c̀YWmVYuYc̀
YY�qYcn]\ V̀Y x

³ YÚj YoV] k] cWaz `n kY\p oVYXWm\] cXa `n Yn WXoc\] ckYcXZÞ\j YqVor YX\ XWyY] coc\ WVkY\ Wcn lYWVYVYs̀
Ym\] ckWVoaa ouYVop\j ỲcmqYc\z `n kY\

\ oopp mY\ Y�\ VWXWq]\ Wa Xom\ mn Ỳ\ oz YXWVV] Yn ò\ W\�]a\ oc{ VYYt x

³ṕUj YYm\] yW\ YqVou]n Yn lWmyoVY\j WccYXYmmWVZ
p oVj] kj V] mt\ VYYloVt m flj] Xjj Wmz YYcopp mY\z ZWcouYVmqYc
n oc\j YyYn] ỳV] mt\ VYY

loVt m x^ Voaa ouYVVYs̀Ym\j Wmz YYcm̀z y]\\ Ynp oV\j Ỳcn YVmqYcn\ op c̀np V̀\j YVloVt] cdvwg�we x

³ kÚj YqVor YX\j Wmz YYcn Ya WZYnz YXẀmYop qVoX̀VYyYc
\ Xoyqa] XW\] ocm xUj] m] mWr o] c\ qVoX̀VYyYc
\ l]\j� W]n m\ ocY[{ WcnU c̀z V]n kY

� Yaa m[{ fWcn\j YqVoX̀VYyYc
\] mz Y] cka Ynz Z�[{ xUj YloVt mWVYY�qYX\ Yn\ oz YXoyqa Y\ Ynz Z| Yq\ Yyz YVdvwg x

³j́Uj Ya Wcn] m] c\j YqVoXYmmopz Y] ck\ VWcmp YVVYn Þ\j YyWm\ YVqa Wcj Wmz YYcWXj] YuYn fWcn\j YXocm̀a\ W\] ocl]\j\j Y} WV] mj{ òcX]a m\ WV\ Yn f

l]\j cYko\] W\] ocmocmqYc
n ocko] ck x

³]́� YuYa oqYVj Wmr m̀\z `]a\n lYaa] ckm fz `\ m\ Wpp] ckuWXWcXZVY
n X̀Yn qV] oV]\ Z\ o] yqa YyYc\] cmYXocnj Wap op ZYWV x

³ŕ̂ lW]\] ckWqqVouWa op yWm\ YVqa Wcz Yp oVYz Y] ckWza Y\ oqVokVYmmm
YXocn qWV\ op Xocm̀a\ Wc\ mloVt fz]nn] ck\ o��� x

³t́� òm] ck� YqW] Vb VWc\ m� uYVev�� YXYc\� oyY� oWcm� lcYV� XX̀q] YV x

³áUj YmYkVWc\ mWVYWaa Xoyy]\\ Yn fz `\\j YqWZyYc\ ml]aaz YyWn YYWVa Zdvwg�we x

³ yÚj Y© yqa YyYc\ W\] ocop\j Y© cXoyY� WcWkYVyon `a Yz YkWc] c� Wc̀WVZWcnj Wmz YYc\ YyqoVWV]a Zm̀mqYcn Yn mom\ Wpp XWcXoyqa Y\ Y\ Wmt m

p oV\j YXa om] ckop\j Yoanp] cWcX] Wa ZYWVWcn oqYc] ckop\j YcYl xUj YqVor YX\ l]aa VYXoyyYcXY
] c� `a ZWcnz YXoyqa Y\ Yn] cdvwg�we x

³ cÚj] m̀cn YVmqYcn l]aa qWV\a Zp c̀n\j YouYVmqYcn oc\j Yb Vòcn�a ooV� YXYq\] oc^ VYW³ź x

³ o{́{U­ Ys̀] qyYc\j Wmz YYc\ VYW\ Yn WmVYuYc̀YY�q
Ycn]\ V̀Y] cdvwi�wg x

³ qÚ Ycn YVn oX̀yYc\ W\] ocqVYqWVYnz WmYn ocYm\] yW\ Ymp Voy\ V̀m\ Yn Xoc\ VWX\ oVmp Wy]a] WVl]\j\j] mmqYX] Wa] m\ loVt flj om̀z mYs̀Yc\a ZXj omY

co\\ o\ Ycn YV x© c\ YVYm\] c\j Y\ Ycn YVoqqoV\ c̀]\ ZlWma] y]\ Yn fWcn oca ZocYXoyqWc
ZlWmXocm]n YVYn m̀]\ Wza Yz WmYn ocqVouYc\ VWXt VYXoVn

Wcn Xom\ x� Ymq]\ YcYko\] W\] ckWd xgß VYn X̀\] oc f\j YqVor YX\ mXom\ mlYVYm\]aa̧� fi�v ouYVoV] k] cWa Ym\] yW\ Ynz `n kY\ x

Page 33



·º

S
er

vi
ce

/P
o

rt
fo

lio
S

er
vi

ce
 M

an
ag

er
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

£
N

o
te

s

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

C
us

to
m

er
 C

on
ta

ct
D

av
e 

T
ho

m
as

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
en

tr
e 

T
el

ep
ho

ny
 

sy
st

em

40
,0

00

T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

la
ye

d 
be

ca
us

e 
of

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t c
om

pl
ic

at
io

ns
.  

T
hi

s 
is

 a
 

jo
in

t p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t w
ith

 M
ai

ds
to

ne
 B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 
(M

B
C

) 
an

d 
T

un
br

id
ge

 W
el

ls
 

B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il,

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t i

s 
be

in
g 

le
d 

by
 M

B
C

.  
T

he
 w

or
ks

 a
re

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

15
.

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

C
us

to
m

er
 C

on
ta

ct

D
av

e 
T

ho
m

as
F

av
er

sh
am

 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

G
ro

un
d 

2,
61

1
A

w
ai

tin
g 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f m

as
te

rp
la

n 
be

fo
re

 b
ei

ng
 a

bl
e 

to
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

se
co

nd
 p

ar
t o

f 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s 
w

or
k;

 b
id

di
ng

 to
 H

er
ita

ge
 L

ot
te

ry
 F

un
d.

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

C
us

to
m

er
 C

on
ta

ct
D

av
e 

T
ho

m
as

C
em

et
er

ie
s

22
,0

40
M

ax
im

is
in

g 
bu

ria
l s

pa
ce

 a
t S

itt
in

gb
ou

rn
e 

C
em

et
er

y 
an

d 
aw

ai
tin

g 
tr

an
sf

er
 o

f b
ar

n 
to

 
P

ar
is

h 
C

ou
nc

il,
 b

ef
or

e 
m

ak
in

g 
fin

al
 la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
an

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t p

ur
ch

as
e.

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

C
us

to
m

er
 C

on
ta

ct

D
av

e 
T

ho
m

as
T

hi
st

le
 H

ill
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

en
tr

e
35

,0
00

D
ev

el
op

er
 h

as
 ju

st
 b

ui
lt 

dw
el

lin
gs

, b
ut

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 v
ac

an
cy

 r
ed

uc
ed

 p
rio

rit
y 

to
 

im
pl

em
en

t i
n 

se
co

nd
 h

al
f o

f y
ea

r.

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

C
us

to
m

er
 C

on
ta

ct

D
av

e 
T

ho
m

as
N

ew
 p

la
y 

ar
ea

 Iw
ad

e
92

,2
00

La
nd

 in
 p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f t
ra

ns
fe

r,
 m

as
te

rp
la

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
, a

nd
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 P

ar
is

h 
C

ou
nc

il 
st

ar
te

d,
 w

ith
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 o

n 
sp

en
d 

on
go

in
g.

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

C
us

to
m

er
 C

on
ta

ct

D
av

e 
T

ho
m

as
H

ig
h 

R
is

k 
T

re
e 

W
or

ks
7,

69
1

T
he

 h
ig

h 
ris

k 
tr

ee
 w

or
ks

 c
am

e 
in

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

 e
st

im
at

e 
bu

t t
he

 r
em

ai
nd

er
 is

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 h
el

p 
fu

nd
 th

e 
re

st
 o

f t
he

 w
or

ks
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 fr

om
 th

e 
tr

ee
 s

ur
ve

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 a

nd
 lo

w
 r

is
k 

tr
ee

s.
  T

he
 w

or
ks

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t i
n 

20
15

/1
6.

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

C
us

to
m

er
 C

on
ta

ct
D

av
e 

T
ho

m
as

M
ilt

on
 C

re
ek

 
F

oo
tp

at
h

5,
18

7
R

ol
lo

ve
r 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f r
eb

ui
ld

in
g 

th
e 

vi
ew

in
g 

pl
at

fo
rm

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 th
e 

re
ed

 b
ed

s 
at

 M
ilt

on
 C

re
ek

.

H
ou

si
ng

A
m

be
r 

C
hr

is
to

u
D

is
ab

le
d 

F
ac

ili
tie

s 
G

ra
nt

92
,0

60

T
he

 c
ar

ry
 o

ve
r 

re
la

te
s 

to
 g

ra
nt

s 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 b
ut

 th
e 

w
or

k 
ha

s 
ei

th
er

 n
ot

 y
et

 
co

m
m

en
ce

d 
or

 h
as

 n
ot

 y
et

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
O

nc
e 

a 
gr

an
t i

s 
ap

pr
ov

ed
, t

he
 

ap
pl

ic
an

t h
as

 1
2 

m
on

th
s 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 th
e 

w
or

k 
an

d 
ca

n 
ch

oo
se

 w
he

n 
to

 s
ta

rt
 th

e 
w

or
k.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

no
 p

ow
er

 to
 v

ar
y 

th
is

 d
at

e,
 it

 is
 s

et
 b

y 
st

at
ut

e.
  £

10
0K

 o
f t

he
 

bu
dg

et
 fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 w

as
 n

ot
 a

w
ar

de
d 

un
til

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
, w

hi
ch

 g
av

e 
in

su
ffi

ci
en

t 
tim

e 
to

 a
llo

w
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f g

ra
nt

 a
nd

 e
xe

cu
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

w
or

k 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r.
  T

he
 c

ar
ry

 fo
rw

ar
d 

am
ou

nt
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

ex
pe

nd
ed

 in
 th

e 
ea

rly
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l y
ea

r.

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

N
ic

k 
V

ic
ke

rs
C

as
h 

re
ce

ip
tin

g 
sy

st
em

22
,7

64

T
he

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

In
co

m
e 

M
an

ag
er

 m
od

ul
e 

be
ga

n 
in

 J
an

ua
ry

 a
nd

 h
as

 
be

en
 te

m
po

ra
ril

y 
su

sp
en

de
d 

so
 s

ta
ff 

ca
n 

co
m

pl
et

e 
ta

sk
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

cl
os

in
g 

of
 th

e 
ol

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

an
d 

op
en

in
g 

of
 th

e 
ne

w
.  

T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 r
ec

om
m

en
ce

 in
 J

ul
y 

an
d 

be
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 2
01

5/
16

.

T
O

T
A

L
31

9,
55

3

Page 34



� -

� à � á � â á â à � ã � ä å ã æ ã � � ç � � è é � ä â � ê ë � � � è ê ê è ì å ë 	 è ë � 	 ê è á á� � á å á í å � � � ë è â ë � â è é å ë ç � á â ã � ë â á î é è ê â à � ï è æ ë ð å � � ñ â å á ã � � á æ ê � ò è ë � ò � å � ó � � á å á� 	 � å ë á â � � � � ä â � ê ë � � � è ê ê è ì å ë 	 å â � ã á è ë â à � ô � � � ë ð � õ à � � â í å � � � � è ë 	 � ë ò á à è ê â â � ê ã� è ê ê è ì å ë 	 ö è ç � ê ò ê � ì ë � � ë ÷ � � � � ë ð � á ö � ë ò � è ë 	 â � ê ã � å � � å � å â å � á î � � à å á � ê æ ò � ë â å � �ñ ë ò å ð � â è ê á � ø � ê � â � � ó å ò � ë â å é å � á � è ê ê è ì å ë 	 é ê è ã è â à � ê � è ë 	 â � ê ã � å � � å � å â å � á á æ ð à � áé å ë � ë ð � � � � á � á � ñ â å á ð è ë á å á â � ë â ì å â à â à � ï è æ ë ð å � ù á � ä å á â å ë 	 ð è ã ã å â ã � ë â á ö å â á ø ê è ø è á � � áé è ê ð � ø å â � � � ä ø � ë ò å â æ ê � � ë ò é å ë � ë ð å ë 	 ö � ë ò å â á � ø ø ê è ç � ò � ê � � á æ ê ó ú � ë � 	 � ã � ë â � è � å ð óõ â � â � ã � ë â � ë ò ø ê � ð â å ð � á �� à � å á â à � á â � â æ â è ê ó � å ã å â ò � â � ê ã å ë � ò æ ë ò � ê õ � ð â å è ë � í � î è é â à �û è ð � � ü è ç � ê ë ã � ë â ý ð â 
 � � � í ê � é � ê ê � ò â è å ë â à � � � 	 å á � � â å è ë � á â à � ý é é è ê ò � � � � û å ã å â î �K À � ¯ ¬ £ ¸ ¨ � ¢ L ¸ ­ ¸ � ° ¬ £¿ À � � £ ¡ ± ² R � » � ´ µ ¶ · ¥ ¶ 6¦ £ ¸ þ ¸ ¡ ± ²L ¸ ­ ¸ �½ ¾ µ µ µ ´ µ ¶ · ¥ ¶ 6S £ ¬ © ¬ ¨ � ¢� � ÿ L ¸ ­ ¸ �½ ¾ µ µ µ ´ µ ¶ 6 ¥ ¶ �¿ ¨ � ¸ ­ ± � �½ ¾ µ µ µ ´ µ ¶ � ¥ ¶ <¿ ¨ � ¸ ­ ± � �½ ¾ µ µ µ4 ë ê ê ë ! Ü î � � þ 
 
 
 æ þ 
 
 
 æ þ 
 
 
 æ þ 
 
 
( ã Û Ý ê + ë î � , ã Ý ê í + Ü é ÿ Ü ô Ü ã Ü Ý ì � þ 
 
 
 � þ 
 
 
 � þ 
 
 
 � þ 
 
 
J ¬ � ± ² � I µ µ µ 2 I µ µ µ 2 I µ µ µ 2 I µ µ µ� à � � å ë ÷ á ò å ê � ð â � ó â è â à � ï è æ ë ð å � ù á � á â å ã � â � á è é â à � ï � � � ë ò� á â å ã � â � á è é è â à � ê ð � á à é � è ì ê � � æ å ê � ã � ë â á � � à å á å ë ò å ð � â è ê å á � � á � ò è ë â à � á � ã �� á â å ã � â � á � á â à � ý æ â à è ê å á � ò û å ã å â ê � é � � ð â å ë 	 â à � ã è á â � å ÷ � � ó ö ø ê æ ò � ë â � æ â ë è â ì è ê á âð � á � ö á ð � ë � ê å è � æ â ì å â à è æ â â à � � ò ò å â å è ë � � à � � ò ê è è ã å ë ð � æ ò � ò ì å â à å ë â à � ý æ â à è ê å á � òû å ã å â �¦ © � £ ± � ¸ ¬ ¡ ± ² M ¬ À ¡ ¢ ± £ � ° ¬ £¿ À � � £ ¡ ± ² R � » � ´ µ ¶ · ¥ ¶ 6¦ £ ¸ þ ¸ ¡ ± ²L ¸ ­ ¸ �½ ¾ µ µ µ ´ µ ¶ · ¥ ¶ 6S £ ¬ © ¬ ¨ � ¢� � ÿ L ¸ ­ ¸ �½ ¾ µ µ µ ´ µ ¶ 6 ¥ ¶ �¿ ¨ � ¸ ­ ± � �½ ¾ µ µ µ ´ µ ¶ � ¥ ¶ <¿ ¨ � ¸ ­ ± � �½ ¾ µ µ µ4 ë ê ê ë ! Ü î � � þ 
 
 
 � þ 
 
 
 � þ 
 
 
 � þ 
 
 
( ã Û Ý ê + ë î � , ã Ý ê í + Ü é ÿ Ü ô Ü ã Ü Ý ì æ æ ú æ æ ú � � ü ü æ �J ¬ � ± ² ´ I � � 1 6 I � � 1 6 I 6 ´ : 6 I : � 6
Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Committee
Meeting Date 21 July 2015

Report Title Performance Monitoring – 2014/15 Quarter 4

Cabinet Member Cllr Wilcox, Performance

SMT Lead Abdool Kara, Chief Executive

Head of Service David Clifford, Policy and Performance Manager

Lead Officer David Clifford, Policy and Performance Manager

Key Decision No

Classification Open

1 Purpose of Report and Executive Summary

1.1 This report presents the quarterly portfolio-based balanced scorecard 
performance reports for the fourth quarter of 2014/15 (January-March 2015). The 
scorecards seek to provide a holistic overview of council performance on each 
portfolio from a range of perspectives. A3 copies of the scorecards will be tabled 
at the meeting.

2 Background

2.1 Strategic performance monitoring by cabinet and the scrutiny committee has 
been primarily through portfolio balanced scorecards since 2011. The scorecards 
seek to deal with ‘performance’ in the broadest sense, rather than focusing only 
on traditional measures such as output indicators.

3 Proposal

3.1 Appendix I provides a scorecard for each cabinet portfolio, plus one covering 
‘corporate health’. This latter includes information which is only relevant from a 
cross-organisational perspective, together with an aggregated summary of some 
of the information which is included in more detail on individual portfolio 
scorecards.

3.2 With the exception of ‘corporate health’, each scorecard also includes a separate 
list of ‘exceptions’, providing more information on items shown as red on the 
scorecards.

3.3 Items may show as red for a number of reasons (e.g. failure to meet target, 
deterioration from the same quarter last year, etc), and the fact that a scorecard 
contains some red items does not necessarily imply that there is a problem. More 
detail on red items can generally be found in the summaries and/or the exception 
reports.

Page 37

Agenda Item 5



4 Alternative Options

4.1 Although national performance reporting burdens have reduced considerably 
over the last five years, regular monitoring of organisational performance both by 
members and by senior officers is widely regarded as essential to a well-
governed, self-aware and effective council. The option of dispensing with 
performance reporting to members is therefore not recommended.

5 Consultation Undertaken or Proposed

5.1 The scorecards are largely based on information provided either through 
Covalent or other council systems by senior officers, and have been circulated to 
SMT and heads of service for comment or corrections prior to being forwarded to 
members.

6 Implications

Issue Implications
Corporate Plan The balanced scorecards provide the primary mechanism for 

members to monitor, and hold officers to account for, progress 
towards achieving the corporate plan. 

Financial, 
Resource and 
Property

The balanced scorecards provide summary in-year budget 
information which is available in more detail in the quarterly budget 
monitoring reports produced by Finance.

Legal and 
Statutory

Few direct implications, as with very few exceptions the Council is 
no longer under an obligation to manage its performance against 
an externally-specified set of indicators.

Crime and 
Disorder

No direct implications, although the local area perception survey 
data includes a perception indicator on antisocial behaviour.

Sustainability No direct implications.

Health and 
Wellbeing

No direct implications, although several measures included in 
either the council’s corporate indicator set or the local area 
perception survey have a significant bearing on the health and 
wellbeing of residents.

Risk Management 
and Health and 
Safety

The scorecards include summary information on both strategic and 
operational risks. No direct health and safety implications.

Equality and 
Diversity

No direct implications.

Page 38



7 Appendices

7.1 The following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the 
report:

 Appendix I: Scorecard reports for 2014/15 Quarter 4.

8 Background Papers
 Year-end financial outturn report for 2014/15: 

http://services.swale.gov.uk/meetings/documents/s3188/Report.pdf

 Quarterly complaints report [available from the Customer Service team]

 Internal audit reports [available from Internal Audit]

Page 39

http://services.swale.gov.uk/meetings/documents/s3188/Report.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Overview

Strategic risk register 2014/15 *

1. Welfare reform/wider economic pressures

2. Regeneration and place-shaping

3. Balancing the budget 2014/15 to 2016/17

4. Transforming to meet the financial climate

5. Safeguarding

Customer Perspective

Total complaints received

Total complaints responded to within 10 working days

Proportion of complaints responded to within 10 working days (target 87.5%)

Total complaints referred to the Local Government Ombudsman

Total compliments received

Summary from the Policy and Performance Team

Service Perspective

This scorecard includes all actions and operational risks from across SBC service plans, and all 40 performance indicators in the corporate set.

2014/15 service plans

Green: target achieved. Amber: 

within tolerance. Red: target 

missed.  Grey: no data or no target.

Green: improved. Red: 

deteriorated. Grey: static or no 

statistically significant change.

Green: best 25%. Blue: above 

median. Amber: below median. 

Red: worst 25%. Grey: no data.

This scorecard includes all 18 local area perception survey indicators from across SBC services.

2014/15 service plans

Green: complete or in progress. Amber: 

action due this quarter. Red: action 

overdue.  Grey: action cancelled.

RAG denotes combined likelihood and 

impact scores. Red: high (≥12).  Amber: 

medium.  Green: low (≤4).

There are 40 corporate indicators in total.

Green: target achieved. 

Amber: within tolerance. Red: target missed. 

CORPORATE HEALTH
Balanced scorecard report for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Council Leader: Cllr Bowles  ����   Deputy Leader: Cllr Lewin

Customer feedback

Budget Profiled (target) spend

Budget monitoring

Revenue budget Capital expenditure

Actual spend

90

Complaints received per quarter: total across SBC Complaints and compliments across SBC: 2014/15 Quarter 4

*The RAG rating relates to the combined likelihood-impact score.

Large projects

All large projects across SBC

Impact

Adverse audit opinions

Number of poor or weak control opinions received during 2014/15 Quarter 4:

This scorecard includes all adverse opinions received across SBC.

Details of adverse opinions:  Safeguarding (weak controls opinion).  Housing benefit systems (weak 

controls opinion).  MKIP ICT helpdesk (weak controls opinion).   

£2,467,690 £2,467,690 (100%) £2,218,988

3

(90%)

Green: improved. Red: 

deteriorated. Grey: static 

or no data. 

Green: best 25%.  Blue: above 

median. Amber: below median. 

Red: worst 25%. Grey: no data.

Indicator quartile positions

(RAG) deteriorated from 2013

deteriorated from 2013/14 Q4 latest available data

Indicators and targets Indicators improved or

85

94%

Operational risks in

Operational risks

84

Local area perception survey 2014

3

Planned actions Performance indicators

Actions in Indicators and targets per quarter (%) Indicators improved or Quartile positions in

This scorecard gives an overview of the state of the council at the end of the fourth quarter of 

2014/15. At year-end 27 corporate indicators (71%) met their targets while 11 (29%) did not. Some 

37% of indicators for which comparator data is available ended the quarter in the best quartile 

nationally, but 26% ended in the worst quartile. Slightly more indicators were deteriorated from 

2014/15 Quarter 4 than were improved, although this measure includes very minor changes in 

performance. More detail is provided in the individual scorecards and their exception reports. 

Sickness absence has fallen back to more normal levels following a spike last quarter. From next 

quarter, long-term and short-term sickness absence will be reported separately; for information, 57% 

of sickness absence this quarter was short-term and 43% was long-term. Three adverse audit opinions 

were received during the quarter, further details of which are available from the Internal Audit team. 

All the council's large projects are on track, complaint levels are stable, and timeliness in responding 

to complaints is now exceeding the target of 87.5% within 10 working days. As usual in Quarter 4, 

budget outturns will not be available until the final year-end outturn report is published.

in 2008 Place Survey data

At end of 2014/15 Quarter 4

Swale Borough Council

Budget Projected year-end position

£18,053,000 £1,436,410 Underspend(8%)

Green: No issues. Amber: Minor issues 

raised/envisaged since last report. Red: 

Significant issues raised/envisaged since 

last report. For more details see portfolio 

scorecards or go to:

http://intranet/projects/default.aspx

Likelihood

Workforce

Strategic risks

3

4

3

Workforce count and sickness absence

3

3

4

3

4

5

5

7

3

8

93 95

64

106

133 131

87 90

0

50

100

150

200

2013/14

Q1

2013/14

Q2

2013/14

Q3

2013/14

Q4

2014/15

Q1

2014/15

Q2

2014/15

Q3

2014/15

Q4

4

5

9

13 10
17

10

6

19

13 11

18
12

17 15

26

9

24

18

69

78

66

76
68

72

63
71

0

20

40

60

80

100

2013/14

Q1

2013/14

Q2

2013/14

Q3

2013/14

Q4

2014/15

Q1

2014/15

Q2

2014/15

Q3

2014/15

Q4

4

1

25

6

132

1

15

17

10 7

3

4

522

10

38

20

6

302
262

461

632

500 531

725

404

284 283 288 290 281 268 269 274

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

2013/14

Q1

2013/14

Q2

2013/14

Q3

2013/14

Q4

2014/15

Q1

2014/15

Q2

2014/15

Q3

2014/15

Q4

Days lost to sickness (per quarter) FTE workforce count

Page 41



Customer Perspective

Summary from the Policy and Performance Team

2014/15 Quarter 4

Economy and Community Services

Service Perspective

Corporate Perspective

At end of 2014/15 Quarter 4 Troubled families x

Economy and Community Services Underspend Project status at end of quarter:

Portfolio-Specific Perspective

At end of 2014/15 Quarter 4

Economy and Community Services (100%) (95%)

1

Capital expenditure

Budget 14/15 Profiled spend Actual spend

�
  B

e
tt

e
r 

 �
  W

o
rs

e
  �

Details of adverse opinions: Safeguarding (weak controls opinion).

There are currently no portfolio-specific items 

in this portfolio.

£150,086£158,040 £158,040

Adverse audit opinions

Number of poor or weak control opinions received during 2014/15 Quarter 4:

Both: no changes to timescales, budget or quality since last report.

And: no future changes to timescales, budget, quality or risks envisaged.

Actions in Operational risks

(8%)

RAG denotes combined likelihood and 

impact scores. Red: high (≥12).  Amber: 

medium.  Green: low (≤4).

Revenue budget Projects

Budget 14/15 Projected year-end position

Green: complete or in progress. Amber: 

action due this quarter. Red: action 

overdue.  Grey: action cancelled.

11

£2,105,420

2014/15 service plans

£175,450 Green

Planned actions All crime per 1,000 population Risk management

This scorecard gives an overview of council performance on the Community Safety and 

Health portfolio at the end of the final quarter of 2014/15. Last quarter's fall in the 

overall crime rate has been sustained, and crime in Swale has fallen at a faster rate 

than among the borough's most similar areas, so that Swale's crime rate is now closer 

to the median than at any time since mid-2013. The indicator nonetheless remains Red 

at 15.6 crimes per 1,000 population against a target of just below 14.7 crimes. One 

'weak controls' audit opinion was received during the quarter, relating to safeguarding. 

Further details are available from the Internal Audit team. As usual in Quarter 4, budget 

outturns will not be available until the final year-end outturn report is published.

No. rec'd No. timely % timely

5

No complaints were referred to the Local Government Ombudsman during the quarter.

Local Government Ombudsman complaints

5

Compliments received during 2014/15 Quarter 4

Economy & Community

100

(RAG)

Green: target achieved. Amber: within 

tolerance. Red: target missed. 

Grey: no data or no target.

Green: improved. Red: 

deteriorated. Grey: static or no 

statistically significant change

Green: best 25%. Blue: above 

median. Amber: below median. 

Red: worst 25%. Grey: no data.

deteriorated from 2013 in 2008 Place Survey data

Complaints responded to within 10 working days (target: 87.5%)

Total complaints received per quarter Indicators and targets Indicators improved or Indicator quartile positions

COMMUNITY SAFETY AND HEALTH
Balanced scorecard report for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Cabinet Member: Cllr Pugh

Customer feedback Local area perception survey 2014

2

1

1

2

0

2

5

10

6

5

0

5

10

15

2013/14 Q1 2013/14 Q2 2013/14 Q3 2013/14 Q4 2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

Economy and Community Services

2

1

2

10

0

2

15.2

17.2

18.4 18.6
19.1

19.0 17.0

15.6

10

15

20

25

2013/14 Q1 2013/14 Q2 2013/14 Q3 2013/14 Q4 2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

Most similar group: Best 25% Most similar group: Median

Most similar group: Worst 25% Swale

Page 42



Ref Title/Description Why is this red on the scorecard?

Performance indicators

CSP/001 All crime per 1,000 population Red against target (target: 14.7 crimes; outturn: 15.6 crimes). 

Local area perception survey indicators (data from summer 2014)

LI/LAPS/02 Agreement that the local area is a place 

where people from different backgrounds 

get on well together.

Red against target (target: 75%; outturn: 66%). Worst quartile nationally. 

Note however that the 2014 outturn for this indicator is a statistically 

signficant improvement over the 2013 outturn of 61%.

Planned actions

[No exceptions]

Operational risks (where combined likelihood and impact score is at least 12, out of a possible 24)

[No Red risks]

List of Exceptions for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Community Safety and Health

Page 43



Customer Perspective

Summary from the Policy and Performance Team

2014/15 Quarter 4

Commissioning and Customer Contact

Policy and Performance

Economy and Community Services

Service Delivery

Service Perspective

Corporate Perspective

Sustainable Sheppey x

Commissioning and Customer Contact Project status at end of quarter:

Policy and Performance

Economy and Community Services

Portfolio-Specific Perspective

At end of 2014/15 Quarter 4

Commissioning and Customer Contact

Policy and Performance

Economy and Community Services

http://www.swale.gov.uk/sustainable-sheppey-3/

in this scorecard.

Revenue budget

deteriorated from 2013/14 Q4

There are ten indicators in total.

Green: target achieved. 

Amber: within tolerance. Red: target missed. 

RAG denotes combined likelihood and 

impact scores. Red: high (≥12).  Amber: 

medium.  Green: low (≤4).

Underspend

Underspend

Underspend

£439,144

Budget 14/15

£636,710

Actual spend

There are currently no portfolio-specific items 

Profiled spend

(69%)

Where adverse opinions are received, details are provided here.

No adverse opinions were received in 2014/15 Quarter 4.

0Number of poor or weak control opinions received during 2014/15 Quarter 4:

(95%)

Adverse audit opinions

ENVIRONMENT AND RURAL AFFAIRS
Balanced scorecard report for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Cabinet Member: Cllr Simmons

(100%)£636,710

Customer feedback Local area perception survey 2014

Total complaints received per quarter

£158,040 (100%)

Indicators and targets

(RAG)

% timely

N/A

26

No complaints were referred to the Local Government Ombudsman during the quarter.

90

5

18

(%)(%) £0£0

Indicators improved or Indicator quartile positions

in 2008 Place Survey datadeteriorated from 2013

(23%)

Economy & Community

(8%)

£6,010,110

Budget 14/15

£47,117

£0

£158,040 £150,086

Capital expenditure

Complaints responded to within 10 working days (target: 87.5%)

5

20

£880,291 (15%)

This scorecard gives an overview of council performance on the Environment and 

Rural Affairs portfolio at the end of the final quarter of 2014/15. Performance on 

indicators is good, with all but one of the corporate PIs achieving their targets by year-

end and almost three-quarters of those for which comparator data is available 

performing better than the national median. Complaints have now returned to 

normal levels following the spike caused by the implementation of the new waste 

contract, and all current service plan actions are making progress as expected. 

Sustainable Sheppey, the portfolio's only large project, remains Green, and no 

adverse audit opinions were received during the quarter. As usual in Quarter 4, 

budget outturns will not be available until the final year-end outturn report is 

published.

100

26

0

Service Delivery

£204,700

Commissioning & Contact

Green: improved. Red: 

deteriorated. Grey: static 

or no data. 

Planned actions Performance indicators

Actions in

Green

Both: no changes to timescales, budget or quality since last report.

And: no future changes to timescales, budget, quality or risks envisaged.£2,105,420 £175,450

No. rec'd

Compliments received during 2014/15 Quarter 4

0

100

No. timely

Quartile positions in

0 11

54 11

Green: best 25%.  Blue: above 

median. Amber: below median. 

Red: worst 25%. Grey: no data.

At end of 2014/15 Quarter 4

Policy & Performance

Indicators improved or

latest available data

Indicators and targets per quarter (%)

Large projects

Projected year-end position

2014/15 service plans

Green: complete or in progress. Amber: 

action due this quarter. Red: action 

overdue.  Grey: action cancelled.

Green: target achieved. Amber: 

within tolerance. Red: target missed. 

Grey: no data or no target.

Green: best 25%. Blue: above 

median. Amber: below median. 

Red: worst 25%. Grey: no data.

Green: improved. Red: 

deteriorated. Grey: static or no 

statistically significant change

Risk management

Operational risks

23

0

20

40

60

80

100

2013/14 Q1 2013/14 Q2 2013/14 Q3 2013/14 Q4 2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

Commissioning and Customer Contact Policy and Performance

Economy and Community Services Service Delivery

3

2

1

0 0 0 0

10 10 10 10

100 100 100 100

90

80

90 90

0

20

40

60

80

100

2013/14

Q1

2013/14

Q2

2013/14

Q3

2013/14

Q4

2014/15

Q1

2014/15

Q2

2014/15

Q3

2014/15

Q4

1

22

1

25

3

2

5 3

2

2

3 33

Page 44



Ref Title/Description Why is this red on the scorecard?

Performance indicators

NI 195i Improved street and environmental 

cleanliness (levels of litter)

Year-on-year deterioration from 2013/14 Q4 (outturn: 3%) to 2014/15 Q4 

(outturn: 5%). 

LI/TBC The number of missed refuse bins per 

annum

Year-on-year deterioration from 2013/14 Q4 (outturn: 211 bins) to 

2014/15 Q4 (outturn: 2,578 bins). 

Local area perception survey indicators (data from summer 2014)

LI/LAPS/7 Agreement that the borough council is 

making the area cleaner and greener.

Red against target (target: 59%; outturn: 48%) Year-on-year 

deterioration (2012: 52%). Worst quartile nationally.

LI/LAPS/13 Satisfaction with keeping the streets free of 

litter (all survey respondents).

Red against target (target: 50%; outturn: 42%). Worst quartile nationally.

LI/LAPS/20 Satisfaction with refuse collection (service 

users).

Red against target (target: 85%; outturn: 74%). Year-on-year 

deterioration (2013: 78%). 

Planned actions

[No exceptions]

Operational risks (where combined likelihood and impact score is at least 12, out of a possible 24)

Pay & Display stations Likelihood score: 4. Impact score: 3. Combined score: 4 * 3 = 12.

Implementation of waste contract Likelihood score: 3. Impact score: 4. Combined score: 3 * 4 = 12.

Open spaces H&S risk management Likelihood score: 3. Impact score: 4. Combined score: 3 * 4 = 12.

List of Exceptions for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Environment and Rural Affairs

Page 45



Customer Perspective

Summary from the Policy and Performance Team

2014/15 Quarter 4

Commissioning and Customer Contact

Policy and Performance

Economy and Community Services

Finance

Human Resources

Property Services

Service Delivery

Service Perspective

Corporate Perspective

At end of 2014/15 Quarter 4

Commissioning and Customer Contact

Policy and Performance

Economy and Community Services

Finance

Human Resources

Property Services

Tackling Inequalities x

Project status at end of quarter:

http://intranet/projects/Equalities%20Framework%202/Forms/AllItems.aspx

Green

Both: no changes to timescales, budget or quality since last report.

And: no future changes to timescales, budget, quality or risks envisaged.

Compliments received during 2014/15 Quarter 4

54

0

11 11

0

Commissioning and Customer Contact

Service Delivery

latest available data

Planned actions Performance indicators Risk management

Quartile positions in Operational risksActions in Indicators and targets per quarter (%) Indicators improved or

26 100

1820

5 5

00

0

No. timely % timely

0

N/A

N/A

No. rec'd

100

0 0

26

Number of poor or weak control opinions received during 2014/15 Quarter 4: 2

Capital expenditure

£6,010,110 £880,291

N/A

N/A

There are no indicators from the local area perception survey in this portfolio.

This combined scorecard gives an overview of council performance on both 

the Finance and the Performance portfolios at the end of the final quarter of 

2014/15. Only two-thirds of performance indicators met their year-end 

targets, and slightly more indicators are deteriorated from this time last year 

than are improved. Half of the indicators for which comparator data is 

available are performing among the best 25% of local authorities in the 

country, but one-third are among the worst 25%. The attached exceptions 

report provides more detail. Two 'weak controls' audit opinions were 

received during the quarter, relating to housing benefit systems and the ICT 

helpdesk. Further details are available from the Internal Audit team.  All 

service plan actions are making expected progress, and progress on tackling 

inequalities, the portfolios' only large project, is also on track. As usual in 

Quarter 4, budget outturns will not be available until the final year-end 

outturn report is published.

Details of adverse opinions: Housing benefit systems (weak controls opinion).  MKIP ICT helpdesk 

(weak controls opinion).

Revenue budget

£385,720 £15,302 (4%) Underspend

Large projectsAdverse audit opinions

2014/15 service plans deteriorated from 2013/14 Q4

Budget monitoring

Budget 14/15 Projected year-end position Budget 14/15 Profiled spend

RAG denotes combined likelihood and 

impact scores. Red: high (≥12).  Amber: 

medium.  Green: low (≤4).

Green: complete or in progress. Amber: 

action due this quarter. Red: action 

overdue.  Grey: action cancelled.

There are nine indicators in total.

Green: target achieved. 

Amber: within tolerance. Red: target missed. 

FINANCE and PERFORMANCE
Combined balanced scorecard report for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Cabinet Member for Finance: Cllr Dewar-Whalley  ����   Cabinet Member for Performance: Cllr Wilcox

Complaints responded to within 10 working days (target: 87.5%)

Customer feedback
Total complaints received per quarter

Human Resources

Property Services

0

0Policy and Performance

Economy and Community Services

Finance

0 0

Actual spend

Green: improved. Red: 

deteriorated. Grey: static 

or no data. 

Green: best 25%.  Blue: above 

median. Amber: below median. 

Red: worst 25%. Grey: no data.

No complaints were referred to the Local Government Ombudsman during the quarter.

90

(15%) Underspend £636,710 £636,710 (100%) £439,144

£0 £0 (%) £0 (%)

£158,040 £158,040 (100%)

£0 £0

(69%)

£33,806(100%)

£0 (%)

£150,086

(%)

£559,670 £120,017 (21%) Underspend (82%)(100%) £122,021£148,280 £148,280

£204,700 £47,117 (23%) Underspend

£2,105,420

Underspend

(8%) Underspend (95%)

£743,130 £0 (0%) (60%)£56,570 £56,570

£175,450

0

20

40

60

80

100

2013/14 Q1 2013/14 Q2 2013/14 Q3 2013/14 Q4 2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

Commissioning and Customer Contact Policy and Performance

Economy and Community Services Finance

Human Resources Property Services

Service Delivery

44
11 11

0
11

0

22 22

56 89 89 89 89

67 67 67

0

20

40

60

80

100

2013/14

Q1

2013/14

Q2

2013/14

Q3

2013/14

Q4

2014/15

Q1

2014/15

Q2

2014/15

Q3

2014/15

Q4
31

45 3

1
2

3 2

4

Page 46



Ref Title/Description Why is this red on the scorecard?

Performance indicators

LI/TBC Proportion of recoverable benefit 

overpayments recovered

Red against target (target: 76%; outturn: 66%). Year-on-year 

deterioration from 2013/14 Q4 (outturn: 78%) to 2014/15 Q4 (outturn: 

66%). 

BV12 Working days lost due to sickness 

absence

Red against target (target: 7.28 days; outturn: 7.85 days). Year-on-year 

deterioration from 2013/14 Q4 (outturn: 5.95 days) to 2014/15 Q4 

(outturn: 7.85 days). The figures given for this indicator are cumulative 

figures across the year, calculated by dividing the actual number of days 

lost by the number of FTE employees to give an average number of 

days lost per FTE employee. This indicator will be reported as two 

separate indicators for long-term and short-term sickness absence from 

2015/16 Q1.

BV8 Proportion of invoices paid within 30 days Year-on-year deterioration from 2013/14 Q4 (outturn: 98%) to 2014/15 

Q4 (outturn: 97%). 

LI/IA/001 Achievement of annual audit plan Year-on-year deterioration from 2013/14 Q4 (outturn: 92%) to 2014/15 

Q4 (outturn: 91%). 

BV9 Proportion of council tax collected Year-on-year deterioration from 2013/14 Q4 (outturn: 97.4%) to 2014/15 

Q4 (outturn: 97.3%). Worst quartile nationally (national 25th percentile: 

97.4%). 

BV10 Proportion of non-domestic rates collected Worst quartile nationally (outturn: 97.3%; national 25th percentile: 

97.8%). 

Planned actions

[No exceptions]

Operational risks (where combined likelihood and impact score is at least 12, out of a possible 24)

[No Red risks]

List of Exceptions for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Combined report for the Finance and Performance portfolios

Page 47



Customer Perspective

Summary from the Policy and Performance Team

2014/15 Quarter 4

Resident Services

Housing Options

Private Sector Housing

Stay Put Service Housing Strategy

Corporate Perspective

Resident Services

At end of 2014/15 Quarter 4

Resident Services

This scorecard gives an overview of council performance on the Housing portfolio at 

the end of the final quarter of 2014/15, providing a range of metrics to give a holistic 

view of the service. The workload of the Housing Options team continues to be high, 

with an average 1.9 households prevented from becoming homeless every working 

day during 2014/15. The number of households in temporary accommodation 

remains below the target maximum, although 69 households is still among the highest 

25% of all housing authorities nationally. Performance on long-term empty homes and 

affordable homes has exceeded target by significant margins. All service plan actions 

are making expected progress, and no adverse audit opinions were received during 

the quarter. As usual in Quarter 4, budget outturns will not be available until the final 

year-end outturn report is published.

Number of long-term empty homes  

brought back into use (cumulative)

Underspend

Actions in

handyperson scheme (cumulative)

Chart legend:    Target                          Actual

Enforcement action responses

2014/15 Service Plans

Operational Risks

Number of households in

temporary accommodation

Gross number of affordable homes delivered

 within seven working days (%)

Number of new prevention

cases opened (cumulative)

Number of households prevented from 

becoming homeless (cumulative)

Number of DFG grants completed (cumulative)

£1,337,242

£1,450,970

Adverse audit opinions

Number of poor or weak control opinions received during 2014/15 Quarter 4: 0

(3%)

Budget 14/15 Profiled spend

Green: complete or in progress. Amber: action 

due this quarter. Red: action overdue. Grey: 

action cancelled  

RAG denotes combined likelihood and impact 

scores. Red: high (≥12).  Amber: medium. 

Green: low (≤4).

Where adverse opinions are received, details are provided here.

No adverse opinions were received in 2014/15 Quarter 4.

(100%)

Capital expenditure

£45,536

£1,343,890 £1,343,890 (100%)

Compliments received during 2014/15 Quarter 4

Actual spend

Revenue budget

At end of 2014/15 Quarter 4 Budget 14/15 Projected year-end position

7Resident Services

Number of enquiries to the Stay Put service Number of jobs completed under the

Total complaints received per quarter

No. rec'd No. timely % timely

12 12 100

No complaints were referred to the Local Government Ombudsman during the quarter.

Risk managementPlanned actions

(cumulative)(cumulative)

HOUSING
Balanced scorecard report for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Cabinet Member: Cllr Wright

Customer feedback

Complaints responded to within 10 working days (target: 87.5%)

8

3
2

3

6
5

8

12

0

10

20

2013/14 Q1 2013/14 Q2 2013/14 Q3 2013/14 Q4 2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

13

2
3

150

300

450

600

128

338

582

826

0

200

400

600

800

1000

2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

18

25

86

156

13 27

41

55

0

50

100

150

2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

351

719

1179

1640

250
500

750

1,000

0

400

800

1,200

1,600

2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

12

25

38

50

10

50

81
86

0

20

40

60

80

100

2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

98

94 94
91

95

95 95

95

80

85

90

95

100

2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

21 41

87

155

32

64

96 128

0

50

100

150

200

2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

101

201

326

476

0

200

400

600

2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

235

519

725

1002

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

59

68
71

69

75 75 75 75

50

60

70

80

90

2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

Page 48



Ref Title/Description Why is this red on the scorecard?

Performance indicators

[No exceptions]

Planned actions

[No exceptions]

Operational risks (where combined likelihood and impact score is at least 12, out of a possible 24)

Insufficient funds to meet mandatory 

obligations to approve disabled facilities 

grant.

Combined risk score: 20.

Increase in homelessness. Combined risk score: 15.

Supporting People budget reduction. Combined risk score: 15.

List of Exceptions for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Housing

Page 49



Customer Perspective

Summary from the Policy and Performance Team

2014/15 Quarter 4

Commissioning and Customer Contact

Policy and Performance

Economy and Community Services

Property Services

Service Perspective

Corporate Perspective

At end of 2014/15 Quarter 4

Commissioning and Customer Contact Community governance review x

Policy and Performance Project status at end of quarter:

Economy and Community Services

Property Services

At end of 2014/15 Quarter 4

Commissioning and Customer Contact

Policy and Performance Members’ Localism Grant
Economy and Community Services

Property Services

Capital expenditure

Budget 14/15

People who have given unpaid help to a club, society or 

organisation at least once per month in the last year (%) 

(showing 2008 national quartiles)

Swale Community Empowerment Network:

Number of member organisations

Proportion of Volunteering Strategy action plan 

completed (%) 

Number of residents attending community engagement 

events

£47,117

Underspend£880,291£6,010,110

£204,700

Where adverse opinions are received, details are provided here.

No adverse opinions were received in 2014/15 Quarter 4.

(21%) Underspend

(8%) Underspend£2,105,420

£439,144 (69%)

£175,450

£120,017£559,670

(100%)

RAG denotes combined likelihood and 

impact scores. Red: high (≥12).  Amber: 

medium.  Green: low (≤4).

Budget 14/15 Projected year-end position

(23%) Underspend

(15%)

Compliments received during 2014/15 Quarter 4

Planned actions Volunteering and engagement indicators Risk management

Actions in

Operational risks
2014/15 service plans

Green: complete or in progress. Amber: 

action due this quarter. Red: action 

overdue.  Grey: action cancelled.

Revenue budget

Policy & Performance 0 Property Services 0

54 Economy & Community 11

N/A

0 N/A

No complaints were referred to the Local Government Ombudsman during the quarter.

5

0

5 100

No. timely

Green: best 25%. Blue: above 

median. Amber: below median. 

Red: worst 25%. Grey: no data.

Commissioning & Contact

Green: target achieved. Amber: within 

tolerance. Red: target missed. 

Grey: no data or no target.

Green: improved. Red: 

deteriorated. Grey: static or no 

statistically significant change

% timely

26 26

0 0

Indicator quartile positions

100

LOCALISM
Balanced scorecard report for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Cabinet Member: Cllr Whiting

Customer feedback Local area perception survey 2014

(RAG) in 2008 Place Survey datadeteriorated from 2013

£148,280

£158,040 £158,040

Total complaints received per quarter Indicators and targets Indicators improved or

Complaints responded to within 10 working days (target: 87.5%)
This scorecard gives an overview of council performance on the Localism portfolio at 

the end of the final quarter of 2014/15. All but one service plan action was on track at 

the end of the quarter; more information on the overdue action is provided in the 

attached exceptions report. Good progress was made over the course of the year in 

implementing the volunteering strategy and in allocating the members' localism grant. 

The community governance review, the portfolio's only large project, remains Green 

and is now due for imminent closure. No adverse audit opinions were received during 

the quarter. As usual in Quarter 4, budget outturns will not be available until the final 

year-end outturn report is published.

No. rec'd

Number of poor or weak control opinions received during 2014/15 Quarter 4: 0

£150,086

£636,710 £636,710

Profiled spend Actual spend

£122,021

£0

(95%)

(%)£0 (%) £0

£148,280 (100%)

(100%)

(82%)

Adverse audit opinions

Proportion of members’ localism grant allocated (%)

Large projects

Green

Both: no changes to timescales, budget or quality since last report.

And: no future changes to timescales, budget, quality or risks envisaged.

http://intranet/projects/default.aspx

22

0

20

40

60

80

100

2013/14 Q1 2013/14 Q2 2013/14 Q3 2013/14 Q4 2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

Commissioning and Customer Contact Policy and Performance

Economy and Community Services Property Services

13

25
22

18
21 21

0

20

40

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

2

1

1

16

1
1

5

2

301

244
279 288

352
386

357 361

0

100

200

300

400

500

2013/14

Q1

2013/14

Q2

2013/14

Q3

2013/14

Q4

2014/15

Q1

2014/15

Q2

2014/15

Q3

2014/15

Q4

71

103
113

90
73

84

113
99

0

50

100

150

2013/14

Q1

2013/14

Q2

2013/14

Q3

2013/14

Q4

2014/15

Q1

2014/15

Q2

2014/15

Q3

2014/15

Q4

38

53

70 96

0

20

40

60

80

100

2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

34

48

80

90

0

20

40

60

80

100

2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

Page 50



Ref Title/Description Why is this red on the scorecard?

Performance indicators

[No exceptions]

Local area perception survey indicators (data from summer 2014)

LI/LAPS/04 Proportion of people who have worked on 

a voluntary basis in the last twelve months.

Red against target (target: 22%; outturn: 21%). Worst quartile nationally.

LI/LAPS/09 Agreement that the borough council listens 

to the views of local residents

Red against target (target: 44%; outturn: 40%). Year-on-year 

deterioration (2013: 42%).

Planned actions

Meads Community Centre The project is currently behind schedule due to an issue with the design-

and-build contract performance and the subsequent re-tender. The 

programme has been reviewed and the revised programme will be to 

complete the project by December 2015/January 2016.

Operational risks (where combined likelihood and impact score is at least 12, out of a possible 24)

Sustainability of leisure trusts. Likelihood score: 4. Impact score: 3. Combined score: 4 * 3 = 12.

Leisure centre contracts and agreements. Likelihood score: 4. Impact score: 3. Combined score: 4 * 3 = 12.

List of Exceptions for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Localism

Page 51



Customer Perspective

2014/15 Quarter 4 Summary from the Policy and Performance Team

Service Perspective

Corporate Perspective

At end of 2014/15 Quarter 4

Development Services

Number of poor or weak control opinions received during 2014/15 Quarter 4: Community Infrastructure Levy x

Project status at end of quarter:

Local Development Framework x

Project status at end of quarter:

Neighbourhood plans adopted: Neighbourhood plans in development:

Green: very or fairly satisfied. 

Red: very or fairly dissatisfied. 

Based on 210 responses.

Green: Swale better. Blue: Both the 

same.  Red: Swale worse. 

Grey: Don't know. 159 responses.

How satisfied are you with

the Planning  Service? (%) service in the last 18 months?

Overall how would you rate How does Swale compare to

other planning authorities? (%)

Green: good or very good. Amber: 

fair. Red: poor or very poor. 

Based on 212 responses.

Two complaints were referred to the Local Government Ombudsman during the quarter.

Local area perception survey

Green: target achieved. Amber: within 

tolerance. Red: target missed. 

Grey: no data or no target.

Green: improved. Red: 

deteriorated. Grey: static or no 

statistically significant change

Green: best 25%. Blue: above 

median. Amber: below median. 

Red: worst 25%. Grey: no data.

Actions in

2009 2010 2011

deteriorated from 2013/14 Q4(RAG)

32%

2013

Indicators improved or

2014

35%

Budget monitoring

2014/15 service plans

Green: complete or in progress. Amber: 

action due this quarter. Red: action 

overdue.  Grey: action cancelled.

(RAG)

Risk management

Percentage processed in 13 weeks (majors) or eight weeks (minors/others)

Timeliness of processing applications Planning fee income 2014/15

RAG denotes combined likelihood and 

impact scores. Red: high (≥12).  Amber: 

medium.  Green: low (≤4).

Adverse audit opinions

0
Green

Underspend

Where adverse opinions are received, details are provided here.

No adverse opinions were received in 2014/15 Quarter 4. Both: no changes to timescales, budget or quality since last report.

And: no future changes to timescales, budget, quality or risks envisaged.

£222,919 (%)

http://intranet/projects/Local%20development%20framework/Forms/AllItems.aspx

Capital expenditure

£0£926,900 £0

Actual spend

(24%) £0

Green: target achieved. Amber: within tolerance. 

Red: target missed. 

Grey: no data or no target.

in latest available data

Indicators and targets

30%

This scorecard gives an overview of council performance on the Planning portfolio at the end of the 

final quarter of 2014/15. Reliable outturns are now available for seven of the indicators which we 

have recently been unable to calculate due to difficulties with the new software. Three of these 

indicators met their targets at the end of Quarter 4, while four did not. More detail on individual 

indicators is available on the list of exceptions. Complaint levels are up on recent quarters, but they 

remain low in the light of the scale of the issues experienced, and timeliness in responding to them 

has returned to Green in Quarter 4. Of the portfolio's eight operational risks with combined 

likelihood/impact scores greater than 12, those with the highest scores are related to the shared 

administration service, as detailed in the exceptions report. As usual in Quarter 4, budget outturns 

will not be available until the final year-end outturn report is published.

Indicator quartile positions

Benchmarking data is not currently available for this indicator.

All service-plan performance indicators

PLANNING
Balanced scorecard report for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lewin

Customer feedback Planning customer satisfaction survey 2013 (survey runs every three years)

N/A N/A

Satisfaction with planning services (service users)

92

Total complaints received per quarter

No. rec'd No. timely % timely

Complaints responded to within 10 working days (target: 87.5%)

Development Services 25 23

Enforcement indicators

2012

41% 41%

Indicators and targets

2008

Planned actions

2015

Brown: majors.  Cerise: minors.  Blue: others. Dashes: targets. Bars: outturns.

Operational risks

Large projects

(%)

Budget 14/15 Projected year-end position Budget 14/15 Profiled spend

Revenue budget

Absolute number of plans adopted and in development since 2011/12.

Green

Both: no changes to timescales, budget or quality since last report.

And: no future changes to timescales, budget, quality or risks envisaged.
0 3

Neighbourhood planning http://intranet/projects/Local%20development%20framework/Forms/AllItems.aspx

19 20

13
12 11

19 20

25

0

10

20

30

2013/14

Q1

2013/14

Q2

2013/14

Q3

2013/14

Q4

2014/15

Q1

2014/15

Q2

2014/15

Q3

2014/15

Q4

10

3

4

8

3

1
3

2 2

5

2 2

2

5

40

60

80

100

2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4
£0

£200,000

£400,000

£600,000

£800,000

£1,000,000

£1,200,000

Target

Actual

2

65

20

15

81

19 16

18

16

50

Page 52



Ref Title/Description Why is this red on the scorecard?

Performance indicators

NI 157b Processing of planning applications within 

timescales: minor applications (eight 

weeks)

In view of the issues experienced with the shared planning administration 

service, the usual cumulative target for this indicator was temporarily replaced 

during the year with a target that for applications determined during March 2015 

we would have returned to national median performance, with 70% of 

applications determined within eight weeks. With an outturn of 60%, 

performance for March did not achieve this figure and is Red, but performance 

is steadily improving: the outturn for 2014/15 Q3 was only 44%. Despite the 

month-on-month improvement, the March outturn shows year-on-year 

deterioration from 2013/14 Q4, when the outturn was 78%, and the indicator 

continues to perform in the worst quartile nationally (national 25th percentile: 

61.8%). The improvement of recent months is now expected to be sustained, 

however, and for 2015/16 we have reverted to the usual cumulative annual 

target, which has been set at 75%, a figure midway between the current 

England median and best quartile.

NI 157c Processing of planning applications within 

timescales: other applications (eight 

weeks)

As with NI 157b, the usual cumulative target for this indicator was temporarily 

replaced during the year with a target that for applications determined during 

March 2015 we would have returned to national median performance, with 84% 

of applications determined within eight weeks. With an outturn of 82%, 

performance for March did not quite achieve this figure and is Amber, but 

performance is steadily improving: the outturn for 2014/15 Q3 was only 59%. 

Despite the month-on-month improvement, the March outturn shows year-on-

year deterioration from 2013/14 Q4, when the outturn was 92%; however, the 

indicator is no longer performing in the worst quartile nationally. The 

improvement of recent months is now expected to be sustained, and for 2015/16 

we have reverted to the usual cumulative annual target, which has been set at 

88%, a figure midway between the current England median and best quartile.

LI/DC/DCE/004 Proportion of planning decisions delegated 

to officers

Red against target (target: 93.0%; outturn: 86.5%). Year-on-year 

deterioration (2013/14 Q4: 87.1%; 2014/15 Q3: 86.5%). Worst quartile 

nationally (national 25th percentile: 89.0%).

LI/LS/LCC/01 Proportion of all local land searches 

completed in five working days

Red against target (target: 95%; outturn: 61%). Year-on-year 

deterioration (2013/14 Q4: 98%; 2014/15 Q4: 61%).

LI/DC/EN/003 Planning enforcement action within 

timescales - major breach 

LI/DC/EN/004 Planning enforcement action within 

timescales - medium breach 

Local area perception survey indicators (data from summer 2014)

LI/LAPS/17 Satisfaction with Planning (service users). Red against target (target: 41%; outturn: 30%). Year-on-year 

deterioration (2013: 35%). 

Planned actions

[No exceptions]

Operational risks (where combined likelihood and impact score is at least 12, out of a possible 24)

Short-term impacts of moving to new 

shared service and IT system

Combined likelihood/impact score: 24

Short-term impact on performance on 

moving to shared service and new IT 

systems

Combined likelihood/impact score: 24

Maintain high quality staff, particularly at 

senior level

Combined likelihood/impact score: 20

Maintain quality decision-making: poorly 

trained and/or unmotivated staff

Combined likelihood/impact score: 18

Limitations on existing IT systems to 

provide the necessary support for efficient 

services

Combined likelihood/impact score: 16

Increased workload leading to less ability 

to respond to customer queries

Combined likelihood/impact score: 15

Data quailty: over-reliance on IT systems Combined likelihood/impact score: 15

Lack of support to maintain and develop IT 

systems

Combined likelihood/impact score: 12

It has not been possible to calculate robust outturns for these indicators 

since the new planning support software has been live. Given members' 

long-standing concerns over the usefulness of these indicators, it is 

intended that a new indicator with a sharper focus on enforcement 

outcomes will be reported from 2015/16 Q1. Work to enable the 

software to support this is currently ongoing.

List of Exceptions for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Planning

Page 53



Customer Perspective

Summary from the Policy and Performance Team

2014/15 Quarter 4

Economy and Community Services

Service Perspective

Corporate Perspective Portfolio Perspective: Business and Skills

Economy and Community Services

At end of 2014/15 Quarter 4

Economy and Community Services

Sittingbourne Town Centre x

Project status at end of quarter:

x

Total complaints received per quarter

100

% timely

Compliments received during 2014/15 Quarter 4

Planned actions

Operational risks

Complaints responded to within 10 working days (target: 87.5%)

No complaints were referred to the Local Government Ombudsman during the quarter.

No. timely

0
Where adverse opinions are received, details are provided here.

No adverse opinions were received in 2014/15 Quarter 4.

Adverse audit opinions

Large projects

Both: no changes to timescales, budget or quality since last report.

And: no future changes to timescales, budget, quality or risks envisaged.

http://intranet/projects/Sittingbourne%20Town%20Centre/Forms/AllItems.aspxNet total NNDR due for the year, adjusted quarterly for new and deleted liabilities (£m)

Rateable business growth

REGENERATION
Balanced scorecard report for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Cabinet Member: Cllr Cosgrove

Customer feedback Local area perception survey 2014

This scorecard gives an overview of council performance and wider 

demographic information on the Regeneration portfolio at the end of the 

fourth quarter of 2014/15. Service plan actions under this portfolio continue 

to make expected progress, and no adverse audit opinions were received 

during the quarter. Rateable business growth has been included as a new 

measure from this quarter, intended as a simple proxy for the effectiveness 

of the council's regeneration and economic development efforts. As usual in 

Quarter 4, budget outturns will not be available until the final year-end 

outturn report is published.

Regeneration-related features of local life most in need of improvement (% of respondents)

No. rec'd

5

Local procurement indicators

Council spend with businesses

Economy and Community Services 11

Actions in

5

Risk management

Council spend with businesses

Swale skills profile

£2,105,420

Budget 14/15

From latest available data (December 2014)

Projected year-end position

£175,450 (8%) Underspend

headquartered in Swale (%) employing ≥30 local people (%)2014/15 service plans

Green

(95%)

Number of poor or weak control opinions received during 2014/15 Quarter 4:

£158,040 £158,040

Capital expenditure

(100%)

Budget 14/15 Profiled spend

£150,086

Actual spend

Green: complete or in progress. Amber: 

action due this quarter. Red: action 

overdue.  Grey: action cancelled.

RAG denotes combined likelihood and 

impact scores. Red: high (≥12).  Amber: 

medium.  Green: low (≤4).

Revenue budget

Proportion of workforce by NVQ qualification level (%)At end of 2014/15 Quarter 4

1
2

0

2

5

10

6
5

0

5

10

15

20

2013/14 Q1 2013/14 Q2 2013/14 Q3 2013/14 Q4 2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

Economy and Community Services

13 6

36 39

28

21
21

20

17
17

17

12
12

19

6
5

7

9 6 9

0

20

40

60

80

100

Great Britain South-East Swale

NVQ4 NVQ3 NVQ2 NVQ1 Other quals No quals

36 36 36 36 36 36 36 36

21
18

22 24
21

24
20 21

0

20

40

60

2013/14

Q1

2013/14

Q2

2013/14

Q3

2013/14

Q4

2014/15

Q1

2014/15

Q2

2014/15

Q3

2014/15

Q4

Target spend (%) Actual spend (%)

42 42 42 42 42 42 42

38

52

41 42

31

43
38 40

0

20

40

60

2013/14

Q1

2013/14

Q2

2013/14

Q3

2013/14

Q4

2014/15

Q1

2014/15

Q2

2014/15

Q3

2014/15

Q4

Target spend (%) Actual spend (%)

0

20

40

60

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Job prospects

Activities for teenagers

Public transport

Shopping facilities

Wages/cost of living

44.397

43.833

44.877 44.831

43

44

45

46

2014/15 Q1 2014/15 Q2 2014/15 Q3 2014/15 Q4

Page 54



Ref Title/Description Why is this red on the scorecard?

Performance indicators

LI/PR/01 Council spend with businesses 

headquartered in Swale

Red against target (target: 36%; outturn: 21%). This indicator will be 

replaced with a new one for which data quailty will be more robust from 

2015/16 Q1.

LI/PR/01 Council spend with businesses employing 

≥30 local people

Red against target (target: 42%; outturn: 40%). This indicator will be 

replaced with a new one for which data quailty will be more robust from 

2015/16 Q1.

Local area perception survey indicators (data from summer 2014)

[No exceptions]

Planned actions

[No exceptions]

Operational risks (where combined likelihood and impact score is at least 12, out of a possible 24)

[No Red risks]

List of Exceptions for 2014/15 Quarter 4

Regeneration

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

21 July 2015 Agenda Item 6

Scrutiny Committee Work Programme for 2015/16
Report author: Bob Pullen – Policy and Performance Officer

Recommendations
That the Committee considers which topics or services it should review during the 
course of the year.    

1 Purpose of report 

1.1 Following the initial discussion of the Committee’s work programme for the 
forthcoming year at the meeting on 24 June, this report collates the 
suggestions made at that meeting and provides an initial analysis to help the 
Committee to select and prioritise what reviews might be taken forward.  
 

2 Background

2.1 Each year, the Committee decides which topics it should review and in what 
priority order.  This year, the Committee will need to be mindful of its revised 
terms of reference (Appendix i) and the fact that some reviews instigated in 
previous years by the former Policy Overview Committee may need taking 
forward to completion.

3 Discussion

3.1 As acknowledged at the meeting held on 24 June, if the Scrutiny Committee is 
to be effective and bring real value, it will need to focus on where it can make 
its biggest impact.  This means basing decisions on what topics or services to 
review on clear objectives and hard evidence why such a review is justified.   

3.2 The topics and services that were suggested as possible areas to review at 
the last meeting are listed in the schedule at Appendix ii together with existing 
activity or reviews which were previously instigated either by the Scrutiny 
Committee or the former Policy Overview Committee.  

3.3 In prioritising which reviews to take forward, it should be remembered that the 
Committee will also be considering regular finance and performance reports 
and undertaking the annual scrutiny of the Cabinet’s budget proposals which 
all needs to be fitted into the Committee’s work schedule.  There may also be 
other urgent items arising during the course of the year which will require the 
Committee’s attention.  

3.4 New reviews will need to be scoped and a review plan (setting out clear 
justification, objectives, timescales and what information is being sought, and 

Page 57

Agenda Item 6



from whom), will need to be approved by the Committee in advance of any 
work starting in earnest.  

4 Conclusion

4.1 That the Committee considers which topics or services it should review during 
the course of the year.    

5 Officer contacts

Bob Pullen – Policy and Performance Officer 
BobPullen@swale.gov.uk  01795 417187

Page 58

mailto:BobPullen@swale.gov.uk


Appendix i

Terms of reference for the Scrutiny Committee

Preamble:  the Scrutiny Committee satisfies the requirement under legislation (S.9F 
of the Local Government Act 2000 as inserted by the Localism Act 2011) to include 
provision for the appointment of one or more committees.  The Scrutiny Committee 
plays a particular role in scrutinising the Executive’s  annual budget proposals as part 
of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules (Part 4.3 of the Constitution 
refers).  

General role:  within the terms of reference, the Committee will: 

(i) review or scrutinise decisions made, and performance of, the Cabinet and 
Commitees and Council Officers both in relation to individual decisions and over 
time; 

(ii) review or scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its policy 
objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas; 

(iii) require Members of the Cabinet and/or Committees and Chief Officers to 
attend before it to answer questions about their decisions and performance, whether 
generally in comparison with service plans and targets over a period of time, or in 
relation to particular decisions, initiatives or projects; 

(iv) make recommendations to the Cabinet or appropriate Committee or Council 
arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process – it is expected that reviews of policy 
arising out of the work of the Committee would be referred to the Policy Development 
and Review Committee; 

(v) review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area and 
invite reports from them by requesting them to address the Scrutiny Committee and 
local people about their activities and performance; 

(vi) make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive with 
respect to any functions which are not the responsibility of the executive; 

(vii) make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive on matters 
which affect the authority’s area or the inhabitants of the area; 

(viii) exercise the right to call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made but not yet 
implemented by the executive; 

(ix) consider Councillor Call for Action requests in accordance with the Councillor 
Call for Action Protocol contained in Part 5 of this Constitution; and

(x) in accordance with Section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006, to act as the 
Council’s “Crime and Disorder Committee” in terms of reviewing and scrutinising 
decisions made, or other actions taken, in connection with the responsible authorities 
discharge of their Crime and Disorder functions.  

Page 59



The Scrutiny Committee shall exercise overall responsibility for any finances made 
available to them.  

Annual Report – the Scrutiny Committee must report annually to the full council on its 
work and make recommendations for amended working methods if appropriate.   

Page 60



Appendix ii

Scrutiny Committee – Possible review activity 2015/16

Topic Ongoing 
review/activity?

Commentary

1 - Financial monitoring Yes The Committee will continue to receive quarterly financial monitoring reports 
during the course of the year to review.  

2 - Performance monitoring Yes The Committee will continue to receive quarterly performance monitoring reports 
during the course of the year to review.  

3 - Council Budget Yes The annual review of the Cabinet’s budget proposals for 2016/17 will take place 
at the Scrutiny Committee meeting on 28 January 2016.  

4 – Fees and charges Yes The Committee has traditionally reviewed the Cabinet’s proposals for setting 
Fees and Charges for Council Services for the next financial year.  This is likely 
to take place at the Scrutiny Committee meeting on 11 November 2015.    

5 – Elections No The Chairman of the Committee has received an undertaking from the Chief 
Executive that a report on the conduct of this years combined Parliamentary, 
Borough and Elections will be provided to the Committee for review.  

6 – Mid Kent Improvement 
Partnership (MKIP): 
Planning Support

Yes There was an initial discussion with the MKIP Board during a joint meeting of the 
Maidstone, Swale and Tunbridge Wells Scrutiny Committees on 23 February 
2015 about Planning Support.  Since then, Tunbridge Wells BC has announced 
that it would explore withdrawing from the shared Planning Support Service and 
the three authorities have established a Planning Support Disaggregation Project 
Board to consider the implications of Tunbridge Wells BC’s decision.  The 
outcome of the 23 February joint scrutiny meeting was that a Task and Finish 
Group comprised of a small number of members from each of the Committees 
would review MKIP Planning Support, but that may now be put on hold to await 
developments.   

7 - Asset transfers Yes Interim report submitted to Cabinet during 2011/12.  Task and Finish Group 
established to review what had happened since 2011/12 during last Municipal 

P
age 61



Topic Ongoing 
review/activity?

Commentary

Year.  A report of the review needs to be brought to the Committee for 
consideration as soon as possible.  

8 - Economic development 
review 

Yes This review had commenced in 2013/14 under the former Policy Overview 
Committee when the Task and Finish Group set up to lead it undertook a number 
of interviews with business interests across the Borough.  The Committee 
discussed this at their last meeting and suggested the review might focus in on 
some specific elements of economic development – e.g. how the Council was 
assisting businesses and the apprenticeship scheme.  

9 - Housing services No Suggestion made at last Committee meeting to review homelessness, lack of 
affordable housing and the effects of the Spare Room Subsidy.  

10 – Planning services Partly Suggestion made at last Committee meeting to review issues within 
Development Control and Planning Enforcement.  However, it was pointed out 
that the Policy Development and Review Committee was already engaged in a 
review of the Planning Enforcement Charter and Strategy.  Furthermore, it was 
planned that a Joint Task and Finish Group formed from the Scrutiny 
Committees of SBC, MBC and TWBC would review MKIP Planning Support.  

11 – Leisure and tourism No Suggestion made at last meeting to review issues relating to leisure and tourism 
provision within Swale.  Were we making the most of existing facilities?  

12 – Local Engagement 
Forums

No Suggestion made at last meeting to review whether the LEFs were actually 
engaging with local residents and what were they trying to achieve.  

P
age 62



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY LOG OF RECOMMENDATIONS

Cttee Review title
Rec

#
Summary of recommendation Status Head of service

Implementation

target date
Notes

Scrutiny Environmental enforcement 1 Members shadowing service units Accepted E. Wiggins Ongoing Limited take-up so far of opportunities to shadow service units.  

Scrutiny Environmental enforcement 2 Clearer briefing on who provides which services Implemented M.Radford Complete
A Guide to Services was incorporated into the new Induction Guide for New Councillors following the May 2015 

elections.

Scrutiny Environmental enforcement 3 Recognise good work of Environmental Response Team Implemented E. Wiggins Complete

Opportunities regularly being taken to publicise work of ERT, eg. local journalist from Faversham Times shadowing 

an Environmental Warden for a day.  

Policy Mental health 1 SBC to work closely with CCGs and GPs on MH provision Implemented A.Christou Complete

SBC now forms part of North Kent Mental Health Commissioning Group for mental health services.  Mental health 

representative appointed to Swale health and Wellbeing Board.

Policy Mental health 2 SBC to assess impact of its services on those with MH Accepted A.Christou Ongoing

SBC are working with Kent Supporting People to pilot the provision of a mental health floating support worker to sit 

with frontline housing and benefits staff in Swale House, to provide additional support and advice to customers 

who have mental health needs and handhold rather than signpost onto more intensive support services where 

required.  The aim is to have this in place shortly.  SBC are also working with the mental health GP link workers 

funded by the CCGs to help ensure customers with mental health needs obtain the right medical support.  

Policy Mental health 3 Stress importance of MH through local partners, inc KCC Accepted A.Christou Ongoing

Both Health and Wellbeing Boards monitor MH service provision commissioned by the CCGs and Kent Public 

Health. C&C CCG have a mental health sub-group. SBC will continue to influence through these.

Policy Mental health 4 Tackle particular problems of young people with MH issues Accepted A.Christou Ongoing

SBC continues to be aware of the problems of young people in Swale and the potential impacts on mental health. 

SBC will continue to seek to influence Kent Public Health and CCG commissioning intentions.

Policy Mental health 5 SBC to support voluntary sector in tackling MH issues Implemented A.Christou Complete
There are now representatives from Mental Health Matters and from Swale CVS on the Swale Health and 

Wellbeing Board.  

Policy Mental health 6 SBC to work with media and others to combat MH stigma Accepted A.Christou Ongoing

This is a highly specialised role that we consider should be led by Kent Public Health, which SBC will support as 

appropriate. SBC organised two training sessions on dementia friendly communities for frontline staff this month. 

Policy Mental health 7 SBC to use its community advocate role to meet MH challenges Accepted A.Christou Ongoing

SBC will continue to work with the local MPs and other stakeholders to press for adequate resources for mental 

health services on Swale.

Policy Mental health 8 SBC to provide a costed model of supported housing Rejected A.Christou N/A 

Mental Health Matters have opened two wellbeing cafes for people in mental health crisis. One in Sittingbourne, 

open Friday and Saturday evenings and one in Sheerness, open Friday evenings and Sunday afternoons

Scrutiny
MKIP Governance and 

Communications
1

Greater opportunities for pre-scrutiny before consideration of 

new shared service proposals.  
Accepted A.Kara Ongoing

Opportunities already exist for pre-scrutiny.  

Scrutiny
MKIP Governance and 

Communications
2

That joint O&S task and finish groups should be convened to 

jointly review any major issues that arise in regard to shared 

service delivery.

Accepted A.Kara Ongoing

Oppoprtunities already exist for this.  

Scrutiny
MKIP Governance and 

Communications
3

That the MKIP Board will notify the O&S functions of each 

authority when there are potential items of interest that a joint 

task and finish group could review on their behalf. 

Rejected A.Kara N/A

It is for O&S to consider the potential items that it wishes to review, and it is not for Cabinet to presume what they 

might be.  The Scrutiny Committee is welcome to review agenda and minutes of MKIP Board meetings.

Scrutiny
MKIP Governance and 

Communications
4

Creation of Mid Kent Services Director post should be 

considered favourably.
Accepted A.Kara Ongoing

This has been agreed in principle.  Needs to be agreed formally through the annual budget process.  

Scrutiny
MKIP Governance and 

Communications
5

The role of the MKIP Programme Manager should be re-

examined.  
Implemented A.Kara Complete

An officer recruited under the Local Government Association's National Graduate Development Programme has 

been appointed to this role.

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 7



Scrutiny
MKIP Governance and 

Communications
6

That early consideration should be given to transferring the 

management of Planning Support and Environmental Health to 

the Mid Kent Service umbrella as soon as possible.

Rejected A.Kara N/A

These services are hosted/led my Maidstone BC and Tunbridge Wells BC respectively.  The Planning Support 

service has been transferred to MKS, Environmental Health still under consideration. 

Scrutiny
MKIP Governance and 

Communications
7

That a toolkit is created to assist managers in their role as 

internal clients of shared services.  
Accepted A.Kara Ongoing

Already happening through the maturing of the Shared Service Boards and the role of the Mid Kent Service 

Director.  

Scrutiny
MKIP Governance and 

Communications
8

Shared services create a service catalogue for their service that 

will help internal clinets to better understand the extent of the 

service they provide.  

Accepted A.Kara Ongoing

This process is formally followed each year as part of agreeing the annual Service Level Plan and Service Plan.  

Scrutiny
MKIP Governance and 

Communications
9 That a joint Communication Plan is developed.  Accepted

MKIP Programme 

Manager
Ongoing

Scrutiny
MKIP Governance and 

Communications
10

That the MKIP Board has responsibility for the effective 

implementation of an agreed Communication Plan and ensures 

its delivery is resourced appropriately.

Accepted
MKIP Programme 

Manager
Ongoing

Scrutiny
MKIP Governance and 

Communications
11

That communication should be improved between the newly 

created Shared Service Boards and MKIP Board regarding 

major service issues or options for change.

Accepted A.Kara Ongoing

Scrutiny
MKIP Governance and 

Communications
12

That client representatives on the Shared Service Boards 

should ensure the outcomes of their meetings are effectively 

cascaded to relevant staff within each authority.  

Accepted A.Kara Ongoing

Scrutiny
MKIP Governance and 

Communications
13

That future MKIP Board meetings should be held and papers 

published in accordance with the appropriate local authority 

access to information regulations.  

Rejected A.Kara N/A

MKIP papers will only be placed on the internal Intranet facility, not published via the Council's external website.  

Key to status

Pending Pending:  Awaiting cabinet decision on whether to accept or reject.

Rejected Rejected:  Recommendation not accepted by cabinet.

Accepted Accepted:  Recommendation accepted, still within target date for implementation.

Implemented Implemented:  Recommendation accepted, implementation complete.

Overdue Overdue:  Recommendation accepted, target date for implementation exceeded.

P
age 64



1

SWALE BOROUGH COUNCIL
FORWARD PLAN AND NOTICE OF KEY DECISIONS

August 2015 - November 2015

Notes:

A key decision is defined as 'an Executive decision which is likely to (a) result in the local authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which 
are, significant having regard to the local authority's budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or (b) to be significant in terms of its effects on 
communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area of the local authority.'

The key decision threshold, confirmed by Council, is set at 100,000 (this relates to (a) of the definition above).

Where the decision will be made by Cabinet the Members of the Cabinet are:

Councillor Andrew Bowles - Leader
Councillor Kenneth Pugh - Cabinet Member for Community Safety and Health
Councillor David Simmons - Cabinet Member for Environmental and rural affairs
Councillor Duncan Dewar-Whalley - Cabinet Member for Finance
Councillor John Wright - Cabinet Member for Housing
Councillor Mike Whiting - Cabinet Member for Localism, Sport, Culture and Heritage
Councillor Ted Wilcox - Cabinet Member for Performance
Councillor Mike Cosgrove - Cabinet Member for Regeneration
Councillor Gerry Lewin - Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Planning

Subject to any prohibition or restriction on their disclosure, copies or extracts of any documents listed below can be viewed at Swale House, East Street, 
Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT.  Please contact Democratic Services to arrange a time to view the documents or to request copies by post by e-mailing 
democraticservices@swale.gov.uk or by telephone on: 01795 417330.  Fees may be charged in accordance with the Council's Fees and Charges policy.

Other documents relevant to the decision item may be submitted to the decision maker; please contact Democratic Services (contact details above) to request 
details of these documents as they become available.

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 9



2

Item Decision item and background 
information

Decision maker, 
date of meeting

Key Decision Will the report be 
exempt or have any 
exempt 
appendices?

List of the 
documents 
submitted to 
the decision 
maker

Lead Member and 
Lead Officer

1.  Cabinet Delegated Decision - 
Assembly Rooms, Faversham 
Release of Covenant and Legal 
Charge
Report detailing transfer of surety 
from Swale Borough Council to 
commercial funders. 

Meeting to be held on Tuesday 14 
July 2015.

Cabinet
15 July 2015

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision because 
is it not likely to 
result in the local 
authority incurring 
expenditure or 
savings in excess 
of £100,000 or to 
be significant in 
terms of its 
effects on 
communities 
living or working 
in an area 
comprising two or 
more wards or 
electoral divisions 
in the area of the 
local authority.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Finance

Peter Bell

2.  Cabinet Delegated Decision - 
Dockyard Church, Sheerness - 
Transfer of Covenant
Report detailing transfer of 
responsibilities from the 
Spitalfields Historic Buildings 
Trust to the Sheerness Dockyard 
Preservation Trust. 

Cabinet Delegated Decision 14 
July 2015 

Cabinet
15 July 2015

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision because 
is it not likely to 
result in the local 
authority incurring 
expenditure or 
savings in excess 
of £100,000 or to 
be significant in 
terms of its 
effects on 
communities 
living or working 

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Finance

Peter Bell

P
age 66



Item Decision item and background 
information

Decision maker, 
date of meeting

Key Decision Will the report be 
exempt or have any 
exempt 
appendices?

List of the 
documents 
submitted to 
the decision 
maker

Lead Member and 
Lead Officer

3

in an area 
comprising two or 
more wards or 
electoral divisions 
in the area of the 
local authority.

3.  Cabinet Delegated Decision - 
Guidance on policy/strategy 
development, consultation and 
adoption
Cabinet Delegated Decision to be 
taken by the Leader.

This guidance is aimed at officers 
who have been asked to write a 
council policy or strategy. It offers 
advice on the most appropriate 
routes through the Council's 
sometimes complex decision-
making processes, as well as 
establishing a standard Council 
approach to external consultation 
on new policies and strategies. 

Cabinet
15 July 2015

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision because 
is it not likely to 
result in the local 
authority incurring 
expenditure or 
savings in excess 
of £100,000 or to 
be significant in 
terms of its 
effects on 
communities 
living or working 
in an area 
comprising two or 
more wards or 
electoral divisions 
in the area of the 
local authority.

Open
 

Leader

David Clifford  
davidclifford@swale.gov.uk

4.  Swale's Sports Facilities Strategy 
2015 - 2025
A draft sports facilities strategy for 
Swale has been developed and 
now needs to be consulted on for 
8 weeks 

Cabinet
2 September 
2015

Key 
It is significant in 
terms of its effect 
on communities 
living or working 
in an area 
comprising two or 
more wards or 

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Localism, 
Sport, Culture and Heritage

Len Mayatt

P
age 67



Item Decision item and background 
information

Decision maker, 
date of meeting

Key Decision Will the report be 
exempt or have any 
exempt 
appendices?

List of the 
documents 
submitted to 
the decision 
maker

Lead Member and 
Lead Officer

4

electoral divisions 
in the area of the 
local authority.

5.  Teynham Car Park - Community 
Asset Transfer
This report seeks approval for the 
transfer under the Community 
Asset Transfer Policy of the car 
park to Teynham Parish Council 
who already manage the car park 
under a short-term lease. 

Cabinet
2 September 
2015

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision because 
is it not likely to 
result in the local 
authority incurring 
expenditure or 
savings in excess 
of £100,000 or to 
be significant in 
terms of its 
effects on 
communities 
living or working 
in an area 
comprising two or 
more wards or 
electoral divisions 
in the area of the 
local authority.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Localism, 
Sport, Culture and Heritage

Kent Parker

6.  Swale's Playing Pitch Strategy
A draft playing pitch strategy for 
Swale has been developed and 
now needs to be consulted on for 
8 weeks. 

Cabinet
2 September 
2015

Key 
It is significant in 
terms of its effect 
on communities 
living or working 
in an area 
comprising two or 
more wards or 
electoral divisions 
in the area of the 

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Localism, 
Sport, Culture and Heritage

Len Mayatt

P
age 68



Item Decision item and background 
information

Decision maker, 
date of meeting

Key Decision Will the report be 
exempt or have any 
exempt 
appendices?

List of the 
documents 
submitted to 
the decision 
maker

Lead Member and 
Lead Officer

5

local authority.

7.  Minutes of the Swale Rural Forum 
held on 25 August 2015

Cabinet
2 September 
2015

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision as it is 
for information 
only.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for 
Environmental and Rural Affairs

Kellie MacKenzie  
kelliemackenzie@swale.gov.uk

8.  Financial Management Report: 
April - June 2015
This report shows the revenue 
and capital projected outturn for 
2015/16 as at the end of period 3, 
covering the period from April to 
June 2015. 

Cabinet
2 September 
2015

Key 
It is likely to result 
in the Council 
incurring 
expenditure 
above £100,000 
or the making of 
savings which 
are, significant 
having regard to 
the local 
authority's budget 
for the service or 
function to which 
the decision 
relates.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Finance

Nick Vickers  
nickvickers@swale.gov.uk

9.  Local Engagement Forum Update
To note and consider the 
discussion and outcomes of the 
three Local Engagement Fora 
held during June 2015. To 
suggest topics as agenda items 
for future local Engagement Fora. 

Cabinet
2 September 
2015

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision as it is 
for information 
only.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Localism, 
Sport, Culture and Heritage

Brooke Buttfield

P
age 69



Item Decision item and background 
information

Decision maker, 
date of meeting

Key Decision Will the report be 
exempt or have any 
exempt 
appendices?

List of the 
documents 
submitted to 
the decision 
maker

Lead Member and 
Lead Officer

6

10.  The Meads Community Centre 
Asset Transfer
This report seeks approval for the 
transfer of The Meads Community 
Centre to The Meads Community 
Centre Trust. 

Cabinet
7 October 2015

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision because 
is it not likely to 
result in the local 
authority incurring 
expenditure or 
savings in excess 
of £100,000 or to 
be significant in 
terms of its 
effects on 
communities 
living or working 
in an area 
comprising two or 
more wards or 
electoral divisions 
in the area of the 
local authority.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Localism, 
Sport, Culture and Heritage

Charlotte Hudson

11.  Mid Kent Planning Support 
Review
Following Tunbridge Wells 
Borough Council's decision to 
withdraw from the shared support 
service (subject to confirmation 
from Tunbridge Wells Borough 
Council Cabinet on 28 June 
2015), the report will review 
options and way forward for 
Swale Borough Council. 

Cabinet
7 October 2015

Key 
It is likely to result 
in the Council 
incurring 
expenditure 
above £100,000 
or the making of 
savings which 
are, significant 
having regard to 
the local 
authority's budget 
for the service or 
function to which 
the decision 

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Planning

James Freeman

P
age 70



Item Decision item and background 
information

Decision maker, 
date of meeting

Key Decision Will the report be 
exempt or have any 
exempt 
appendices?

List of the 
documents 
submitted to 
the decision 
maker

Lead Member and 
Lead Officer

7

relates.

12.  Minutes of the Local Development 
Framework Panel held on 17 
September 2015

Cabinet
7 October 2015

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Planning

Gill Harris

13.  Local Engagement Forum Update
To note and consider the 
discussion and outcomes of the 
three Local Engagement Fora 
held during September 2015. To 
suggest topics as agenda items 
for future local Engagement Fora. 

Cabinet
4 November 2015

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision as it is 
for information 
only.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Localism, 
Sport, Culture and Heritage

Brooke Buttfield

14.  Review of Fees and Charges
The report invites Cabinet to 
consider the proposals for the 
level of fees and charges to be 
levied for the next financial year 
2016/17 for submission to 
Council. Charges will take effect 
from 1 April 2016. 

Cabinet
4 November 2015

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision as it will 
be considered 
and decided by 
full Council.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Finance

Nick Vickers  
nickvickers@swale.gov.uk

15.  Medium Term Financial Plan and 
2016/17 Budget
This report sets out the Council's 
Medium Term Financial Plan and 
proposals for the 2016/17 Budget. 

Cabinet
2 December 2015

Key 
It is likely to result 
in the Council 
incurring 
expenditure 
above £100,000 
or the making of 
savings which 
are, significant 

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Finance

Nick Vickers  
nickvickers@swale.gov.uk

P
age 71



Item Decision item and background 
information

Decision maker, 
date of meeting

Key Decision Will the report be 
exempt or have any 
exempt 
appendices?

List of the 
documents 
submitted to 
the decision 
maker

Lead Member and 
Lead Officer

8

having regard to 
the local 
authority's budget 
for the service or 
function to which 
the decision 
relates.

16.  Minutes of the Swale Rural Forum 
held on 17 November 2015

Cabinet
2 December 2015

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision as it is 
for information 
only.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for 
Environmental and Rural Affairs

Kellie MacKenzie  
kelliemackenzie@swale.gov.uk

17.  Financial Management Report: 
April to September 2015

Cabinet
2 December 2015

Key 
It is likely to result 
in the Council 
incurring 
expenditure 
above £100,000 
or the making of 
savings which 
are, significant 
having regard to 
the local 
authority's budget 
for the service or 
function to which 
the decision 
relates.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Finance

Nick Vickers  
nickvickers@swale.gov.uk

18.  Minutes of the Local Development 
Framework Panel held on 3 
December 2015

Cabinet
6 January 2016

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Planning

Gill Harris

P
age 72



Item Decision item and background 
information

Decision maker, 
date of meeting

Key Decision Will the report be 
exempt or have any 
exempt 
appendices?

List of the 
documents 
submitted to 
the decision 
maker

Lead Member and 
Lead Officer

9

19.  Local Engagement Forum Update
To note and consider the 
discussion and outcomes of the 
three Local Engagement Fora 
held during December 2015. To 
suggest topics as agenda items 
for future local Engagement Fora. 

Cabinet
3 February 2016

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision as it is 
for information 
only.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Localism, 
Sport, Culture and Heritage

Brooke Buttfield

20.  Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement and Investment 
Strategy 2015/16
This report sets out and seeks 
approval of the proposed 
Treasury Management Strategy 
and Investment Strategy for the 
Council in 2016/17. It will be 
proposed to Council at the 
meeting on 17 February 2016. 

Cabinet
3 February 2016

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision as it will 
be considered 
and decided by 
full Council.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Finance

Nick Vickers  
nickvickers@swale.gov.uk

21.  Medium Term Financial Plan and 
2016/17 Budget
This report sets out the Council's 
Medium Term Financial Plan and 
proposals for 2016/17 Budget. 

Cabinet
3 February 2016

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision as it will 
be considered 
and decided by 
full Council.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Finance

Nick Vickers  
nickvickers@swale.gov.uk

22.  Financial Management Report: 
April - December 2015
This report shows the revenue 
and capital projected outturn for 
2015/16 as at the end of period 9, 
covering the period from April to 
December 2015. 

Cabinet
2 March 2016

Key 
It is likely to result 
in the Council 
incurring 
expenditure 
above £100,000 
or the making of 
savings which 
are, significant 

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Finance

Nick Vickers  
nickvickers@swale.gov.uk

P
age 73



Item Decision item and background 
information

Decision maker, 
date of meeting

Key Decision Will the report be 
exempt or have any 
exempt 
appendices?

List of the 
documents 
submitted to 
the decision 
maker

Lead Member and 
Lead Officer

10

having regard to 
the local 
authority's budget 
for the service or 
function to which 
the decision 
relates.

23.  Minutes of the Local Development 
Framework Panel held on 11 
February 2016

Cabinet
2 March 2016

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Planning

Gill Harris

24.  Minutes of the Swale Rural Forum 
held on 23 February 2016

Cabinet
2 March 2016

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision as it is 
for information 
only.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for 
Environmental and Rural Affairs

Kellie MacKenzie  
kelliemackenzie@swale.gov.uk

25.  Local Engagement Forum Update
To note and consider the 
discussion and outcomes of the 
three Local Engagement Fora 
held during February/March 2016. 
To suggest topics as agenda 
items for future local Engagement 
Fora. 

Cabinet
25 May 2016

Non-Key 
This is not a key 
decision as it is 
for information 
only.

Open
 

Cabinet Member for Localism, 
Sport, Culture and Heritage

Brooke Buttfield

P
age 74


	Agenda
	4 Financial Outturn Report 2014/15
	Appendix I Outturn report

	5 Performance Monitoring Report 2014/15 - Quarter 4
	Balanced scorecards 2014-15 Quarter 4 - Scrutiny

	6 Scrutiny Committee Work Programme for 2015/16
	7 Reviews at Follow-up Stage and Log of Recommendations
	9 Cabinet Forward Plan

